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December 18, 2008

Citizens of Grants Pass
Honorable Len Holzinger, Mayor
Members of the City Council
Budget Committee Members
Reviewing Agencies

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Grants Pass Municipal government undergoes an annual audit to report information on
local government financial affairs and to ensure compliance with government
accounting standards and practices. Local government has very stringent reporting and
accounting standards that require full disclosure of financial affairs to the public that it
serves.

The annual audit is prepared to meet legal requirements (ORS 297.425) and to respond
to our Council's strong belief in total disclosure and effective communication. Pauly,
Rogers and Co., P.C., a firm of certified public accountants, have audited the attached
financial statements. The City is responsible for the accuracy of the data and the
complete disclosure of our financial records. The auditors test transactions, verify the
system, and assure accuracy.

Your management and employees believe that the financial information and disclosures
of this report are accurate in all material respects, and that the report fairly represents
the financial position of the City and the results of operations for the last year, as
measured by financial activity. We have included all disclosures necessary for the
reader to understand the financial condition of the City.

Geography of the City of Grants Pass
Grants Pass has grown to a population of an estimated 32,290 residents and is a
beautiful community with a "hometown" feeling. The City was incorporated in 1887 and

today encompasses 7,026 acres of land. Grants Pass is located on Interstate 5 in the
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“Sun Belt” of Southern Oregon, astride the banks of the Rogue River, one of America’'s
premier white water rivers. The City is nestled among a series of mountains providing
the valley a scenic backdrop. Grants Pass is the County seat of Josephine County and
serves as the major commercial, cultural, and economic center for a County population
of 83,290.

Factors Impacting Financial Conditions

The City of Grants Pass continues to experience growth and now ranks 16th in
population among 242 communities in Oregon. Grants Pass’ assessed value rose
6.9% while the County experienced a 6.0% increase in assessed value.

While Grants Pass continues to grow, development has slowed significantly during the
past two years. Residential construction decreased 33% in number of units and
$13.2M in value from the previous year. Commercial construction declined 48% with a
$9.0M decrease in value. Thus the immediate demand for planning and building
inspection for all classes of construction has slowed considerably.

The local housing market has experienced a decrease in the number of homes sold
over the last year. For the month of November 2008 the median house price for a 3
bedroom home was $209,000 and for a four bedroom home was $251,000. The
average price for a house sold in Grants Pass for the month of November 2007 was
$262,000. It is difficult to predict when the market will change but it seems reasonable
to assume that development will not be returning to the record breaking levels
experienced in the 2005 calendar year in the near future.

The acquisition of lands throughout the urban growth boundary by private developers
for future subdivisions has decreased dramatically and will continue to depend upon the
expansion of municipal utility services. Grants Pass requires Service and Annexation
Agreements (S & A) prior to accessing municipal services for water, wastewater, police,
and fire. Accordingly, property owners within the urban growth boundary are required to
pay the equivalent of the City tax rate on assessed value for these services. At time of
annexation, this independent billing is replaced by the levy of the property tax rate on
the subject properties.

Commercial permits declined by 15 in FY’08, while the total permits issued declined
25% from the previous year to 2,857 permits in total. Despite development declines,
escalating demands for transportation and public safety services are on-going.
Simultaneously, as the municipal boundaries grow, residents expect rural streets to be
brought up to City standards and neighborhood parks to be planned and developed
while protecting the natural environment.

All property taxes received in Grants Pass are dedicated exclusively for the provision of
public safety services. The permanent tax rate ($4.1335) together with the local option
levy ($1.49) and public safety bond ($0.5097) totaled $6.1332/$1,000 assessed value
and generated 12.4M of the 12.8M public safety budget. However, despite increasing
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demands on the public safety staff, in November of 2008 voters declined to renew the
local public safety levy for the next four years. Without a replacement for this revenue
this spring, public safety and other departments within the City will be forced to make
significant cuts to various services beginning in FY’10.

Public safety officers currently handle more calls per officer than almost any other
medium sized Oregon City. However, the failed levy measure represented funding for
approximately 50 police and fire staff. The City also continues to face challenges in
securing general support revenues for programs that are critical to the sustainability of
our community, such as planning, parks, and capital projects.

Grants Pass is not immune to the decline in employment facing the nation as a whole.
In fact, Grants Pass lost 240 jobs from October 2007 to October 2008. Some sections
of the economy did buck this trend with wholesale trade increasing jobs by 50 people,
retail trade up 60, and health care and social assistance up 70. This was countered by
the loss of 140 construction jobs, 240 manufacturing jobs and 20 leisure and hospitality
jobs.

Josephine County has an unemployment rate of 9.3% as of October 31, 2008, up from
6.7% on October 31, 2007. Currently, 32,733 people are employed compared to
35,251 people employed in 2007. In October of 2008, 3,338 people were unemployed
compared to 2,372 in October 2007.

Regional employment projections for the next ten years anticipate an employment
growth rate of 15.7%, resulting from population increases and economic expansion.
Baby-boom retirements are predicted to generate two thirds of the replacement job
openings. Health care occupations are predicted to grow by 29% within the period
2006-2016.

Manufacturing and other primary sector employment fell dramatically over the last year,
largely in the last six months of the year. We saw many local employers reduce
employee hours with many of the firms going to a four day week or six hour day.
Masterbrand Cabinets laid off 104 people in early September and Timber Products laid
off 46 a month later. On the plus side, Fire Mountain Gems is still going strong and
plans to start its very first Spanish language catalog. Rogue Pro Industrial has moved
into Spalding Industrial Park and now employs 15 people. Carry’s Candies has found a
new outlet and increased employment to over 30 people. The Guild Complex has
completed its third building and Diversified Collection Services (DCS) has moved in,
increasing their employment by 25 people.

The Grants Pass / Josephine County Business Retention & Expansion program, a
nationally recognized initiative, continues to survey and aid dozens of local employers in
retaining and expanding their enterprises. A fourth round of comprehensive surveys
was launched in early 2008 and the findings were announced in late September. Of the
78 businesses surveyed, on a scale of 1 to 5, where 5 is excellent, they rated Grants
Pass a 3.9 as a place to do business and as a 4.7 as a community in which to live.
While 45% of the firms expressed plans to modernize or expand their present facilities,
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32% of the businesses do not have sufficient property for expansion. It is very
important to remain cognizant of this information as the City continues work on its
Urban Growth Boundary expansion project.

City Organization and Services

The City of Grants Pass has been organized under the Council/Manager form of
government since 1946. The governing body consists of eight Council members
elected at large, two from each of four wards, and a Mayor elected at large. Elected
officials serve without compensation. The Council’s mission is:

"To represent all of the citizens by providing leadership, policies, ordinances
and decisions necessary to meeting citizens' needs and desires."

The Council makes policy and directly employs the City Manager. The Manager
executes Council policy and has the operating and administrative responsibility for all
divisions of the municipal corporation. Our local government structure is similar to that
of other corporations. For instance, our Mayor is Chairman of the Board, our Council
the Board of Directors, and our City Manager the Chief Executive/Operating Officer of
the Corporation. The City provides a full range of municipal services. General
governmental functions include public safety, code enforcement, park maintenance,
planning and development and parking enforcement. Street maintenance, landfill
operations and other special operations are reported with the Special Revenue Funds.
Services provided through enterprise funds are the water and sewer utilities, in which
expenses are covered primarily by user charges. Administrative Services, Support
Services, Insurance and Fleet Management are provided through Internal Service
Funds. The following programs are administered by five departments under the
direction of the City Manager:

Community Development: Directs the development of the community through
planning and construction (utility systems, parking facilities, neighborhood
improvements, etc.), and enforcement of state building standards.

Public Safety: Provides police protection, fire suppression and prevention,
traffic control, educational programs and similar activities for the. community.

Parks & Community Services: Directs the operations and maintenance of City
facilities (parks, buildings), economic development programs, coordinates
downtown events, supports recreation in the community and provides
information technology and fleet maintenance services.

Public Works: Directs the operations of the streets division, City water and

wastewater utilities, landfill and special districts (Harbeck-Fruitdale Sewer District
and the Redwood Sanitary Sewer Service District).
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Administrative Services: Divided into four divisions, Management, Legal,
Finance, and Human Resources. Provides management in coordinating and
directing all City operations and policy development/analysis, risk management
and legal services, economic development, payroll, personnel, debt
administration, fiscal management, budget and other financial services to the
City.

City Agencies and Special Districts

This report includes all of the funds and account groups of the City as well as all
activities for which the City exercises financial or oversight responsibilities consistent
with the entity definition criteria established by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB).

The Grants Pass Parkway Redevelopment Agency (GPPRA) is required to have a
separate audit by licensed public accountants. Because the City Council is the
governing board of this independent Agency and the City provides financial and
administrative services to the Agency, the GPPRA is included in this report as a Capital
Project Fund. The information presented has been condensed from the separate
GPPRA audit report to conform to the City's reporting format.

The City Council is also the governing body of the Harbeck-Fruitdale Sewer District
(HFSD), an entity formed to provide a sewer collection system in a particular area of the
City. The HFSD is reported as a component unit in the Enterprise Funds. In prior
years, the HFSD received a state grant to fund expansion of the system for health and
safety purposes. Currently, the HFSD activity reflects only assessment revenues from
benefited property owners and debt service on the twenty-year grant.

Effective August 1998, the City Council also became the governing body of the
Redwood Sanitary Sewer Service District (RSSSD), an entity formed twenty years ago
to provide sewer services to a specific geographical area outside the municipal
boundary. The District was authorized through an intergovernmental agreement
between the City and Josephine County. Effective fiscal year 2000, the City assumed
responsibility for management of RSSSD from Josephine County for providing financial
support services, including preparation of the financial report and contracting for a
separate audit. RSSSD is required to have a separate audit, which is included as a
component unit in this report and shown in the Enterprise Funds section.

Similarly, in September, 2001 the City of Grants Pass entered into an intergovernmental
agreement with Josephine County, forming an entity known as the Josephine
County/City of Grants Pass Solid Waste Agency. This Agency has a six-member
board, three each from the County and the City. This Board is responsible for oversight
of the solid waste franchise agreements, establishing rates, and collecting and
allocating environmental program fees. The Board granted managerial responsibilities
of the Agency to the City of Grants Pass.



Goals Of The Community

The Grants Pass City Council adopted the following goals for 2007-08. Through these
goals, the Mayor and Council have reaffirmed the importance of maintaining “a home
town feel” to the community, a community that:

Feels safe and Is safe

Places emphasis on the central role of the Rogue River

Protects our natural environment

Enhances and expands parks and recreation opportunities
Upgrades our ability to respond to growth, and to effectively manage
the impact of growth

Assures the opportunity for economic development

Provides local government services that are effective and efficient

VY VYVVYY

Measuring Performance

Grants Pass is committed to the Government Finance Officers Association
recommended performance standards. Each operating division, as a part of the annual
budgetary process, is required to define outcomes and service levels. These indicators
of performance are reviewed semi-annually and then published at year-end, with
notations addressing the attainment of each. The City has achieved 85% of the 117
performance indicators for outcomes and service levels.

Accounting Systems and Internal Controls

The City's governmental and fiduciary fund types are maintained on the modified
accrual basis of accounting with revenues recorded when measurable and available,
and expenditures recorded when the goods or services are delivered and liabilities are
incurred. The City's enterprise and internal service funds are maintained on the accrual
basis of accounting.

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control
structure designed to ensure that the assets of the government are protected from loss,
theft or misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data are compiled for the
preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles. The internal control structure is designed to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable
assurance recognizes that:

The cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived,

and the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments
by management.
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All internal control evaluations have been made within the framework described above.
We believe the internal accounting controls meet the material standards for audit,
adequately safeguard the City's assets, and provide reasonable assurance that
financial transactions are properly reported.

Cash

The City strives to maximize interest income on cash assets for the benefit of the
public. Cash in all City funds is pooled and invested in either the state managed Local
Government [Investment Pool or short-term instruments, which are restricted to
investments approved by the State Treasurer in accordance with Oregon Revised
Statutes 294.035 and 294.046, and a Council Adopted Investment Policy. Interest
income is distributed monthly to each fund’s cash balance.

Risk Management

In fiscal year 2008, the City was insured for general liability through a risk pool
comprised of cities and counties in Oregon, and managed through the League of
Oregon Cities. Workers compensation, a self-insured program, is administered through
a contract with a private firm. Insurance and state bonding requirements provide
protection from losses in excess of $400,000. During FY’08 the City did not incur any
major time-loss injuries.

Awards

The Government Financial Officers Association of the United States and Canada
(GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to
the City of Grants Pass for its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2007. The Certificate of Achievement is a prestigious award
recognizing conformance with the highest standards for preparation of state and local
government financial reports.

In order to be awarded a GFOA Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must
publish an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial
report (CAFR), whose contents conform to program standards. The CAFR must satisfy
both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. The City has
received this Certificate for the last twenty-three consecutive fiscal years. We believe
our current report continues to conform to the Certificate of Achievement program
requirements, and we are submitting it to GFOA for award consideration.
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PAULY, ROGERS AND CO., P.C.
® CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

F

¢ 12700 SW 72ND AVENUE » TIGARD, OREGON 97223
o (503) 620-2632 * FAX (503) 684-7523

December 18, 2008

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of Grants Pass, Oregon

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
discretely presented component unit, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City
of Grants Pass, Josephine County, Oregon, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2008, which collectively
comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the basic financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the basic financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented component
unit, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Grants Pass, Josephine
County, Oregon, at June 30, 2008 and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where
applicable, thereof for the year then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

The Management Discussion and Analysis and the required supplementary information, as listed on the table of
contents, are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information required by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted
principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required
supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.



Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City of Grants Pass’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, supplementary
information and statistical tables are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of
the basic financial statements. The supplementary information, as listed in the table of contents have been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The
introductory section and statistical tables have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.
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CITY OF GRANTS PASS, OREGON
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A)

This section of the City of Grants Pass’ annual financial report presents our discussion and analysis of the
City’s financial performance during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. Please read it in conjunction

with the City’s transmittal letter and the City’s financial statements and notes, which follow this section.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

o The City’s total combined net assets were $253,419,741 on June 30, 2008.
e The City’s net assets increased by $16,766,207 during the year.

e The general fund reported a fund balance this year of $7,482,929.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This annual report consists of three parts: management’s discussion and analysis (this section), the basic
financial statements, and requived supplementary information. The basic financial statements include
two types of statements that present different views of the City:

e The first two statements are government-wide financial statements that provide both long-term and
short-term information about the City’s overall financial status.

e The remaining statements are fund financial statements that focus on individual parts of the
government, reporting the City’s operations in more detail than the government-wide statements.

o The governmental fund statements tell how general government services were financed in the
short-term as well as what remains for future spending.

e Proprietary fund statements offer short- and long-term financial information about the activities
the government operates like businesses.

e  Fiduciary fund statements provide information about the financial relationships in which the City
acts solely as a trustee or agent for the benefit of others having ownership of the resources at issue.

The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the financial
statements and provide more detailed data. The statements are followed by a section of required
supplementary information that further explains and supports the information in the financial statements.
The remainder of this overview section of management’s discussion and analysis explains the structure
and contents of each of the statements.

Government-wide Statements

The government-wide statements report information about the City as a whole using accounting methods
similar to those used by private-sector companies. The statement of net assets includes all of the
government’s assets and liabilities. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are accounted for in
the statement of activities regardless of when cash is received or paid.



The two government-wide statements report the City’s net assets and how they have changed. Net assets -
the difference between the City’s assets and liabilities - are one way to measure the City’s financial health
or position.

o Over time, increases or decreases in the City’s net assets are an indicator of whether its financial
health is improving or deteriorating, respectively.

e To assess the overall fiscal health of the City, one needs to consider additional non-financial factors
such as changes in the City’s tax base.

The government-wide financial statements of the City include the Governmental activities. Most of the
City’s basic services are included here, such as general government, public safety, planning, building and
safety, streets and storm drainage, solid waste, economic development, culture and recreation, and interest
on long-term debt. Most of these activities are financed by property taxes, franchise taxes, permits and
fees, and intergovernmental revenues.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the City’s most significant funds -
not the City as a whole. Funds are accounting devices that the City uses to keep track of specific sources
of funding and spending for particular purposes.

The City has the following types of funds:

o  Governmental funds - Most of the City’s basic services are included in governmental funds, which
focus on (1) how cash and other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash flow in and
out and (2) the balances left at year-end that are available for spending. Consequently, the
governmental funds statements provide a detailed short-rerm view that helps you determine
whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance
the City’s programs. Because this information does not encompass the additional long-term focus
of the govermment-wide statements, we provide additional information at the bottom of the
governmental funds statement, or on the subsequent page, that explain the relationship (or
differences) between them.

e Proprietary funds - Services for which the City charges customers a fee are generally reported in
proprietary funds. Proprietary funds, like the government-wide statements, provide both long-term
and short-term financial information.

e Internal service funds — These are used to report activities that provide supplies and services for the
City’s other programs and activities.

e Fiduciary funds - The City is the trustee, or fiduciary, for certain funds. Tt is also responsible for
other assets that, due to a trust arrangement, can be used only for the trust beneficiaries. The City
is responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used for their intended
purposes. All of the City’s fiduciary activities are reported in a separate statement of fiduciary net
assets and a statement of changes in fiduciary net assets. We exclude these activities from the
City’s government-wide financial statements because the City cannot use these assets to finance its
operations.



FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY AS A WHOLE

Net Assets
The City’s combined net assets were $253,419,741 on June 30, 2008.

Statement of Net Assets at June 30, 2008

(In thousands)
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
ASSETS:
Current and Other Assets $ 39,168 § 40,409 $ 12022 $ 14,680 $ S5L,190 § 55,089
Capital Assets 137,411 122,913 94,493 89,426 231,904 212,339
Total Assets $ 176,579 § 163,322 § 106515 § 104,106 § 283,094 § 267428
LIABILITIES:
Current and Other Liabilies § 2,759 § 1909 § 708 $ 1612 $ 3467 § 3,521
Long-Term Liabilities 14,484 14,639 11,723 12,614 26,207 27,253
Total Liabilities 17,243 16,548 12,431 14,226 29,674 30,774
NET ASSETS:
Invested in Capital Assets,
Net of Related Debt 129,196 109,720 82,828 76,870 212,024 186,590
Restricted 3,707 - - - 3,707 -
Unrestricted 26,433 37,054 11,256 13,010 37,689 50,064
Total Net Assets $ 159336 $ 146,774 § 94,084 § 89,880 § 253420 § 236,654

Governmental Activities

The major reason for the 8.6% increase, or approximately $12.6M in net assets was the City’s capital and
infrastructure improvement projects. While Revenues exceeded expenditures by $2.06M in the General
Fund, the Transportation Capital Projects Fund and the Land and Buildings Capital Projects Fund
together used $4.83M more resources than revenue and other financing sources provided during the year.

Fixed Asset activity primarily consisted of transportation infrastructure projects and building the two new
public safety stations. During FY’08, $5.5M in progress payments were made on the construction of the
new police/fire stations. Right-of-Way totaling 619,000 square feet and valued at $2.6M was added to the
system in addition to $370,134 for storm drains, catch basins and manholes, $321,490 in curb and gutter
work along with $810,500 in concrete sidewalks. Other Transportation enhancements included
improvements underway on Redwood Avenue and Rogue River Highway. Other capital projects
undertaken in FY’08 include development at Redwood Park, tennis court and basketball court
renovations, improvements at Riverside Park, Fruitdale Creek Park, and Rogue Path, all reported in Land
& Building Capital Projects Fund. An increase in accrued payroll and retainage payable accounts for the
majority of the change in current liabilities, while annual debt service payments contribute to the decline
in long-term liabilities.

Business-type Activities
Operating revenues for both the Water and Sewer Funds collectively declined by $875,361 as compared
to FY’07, a 7.5% decrease. System development charge revenues, while generally influenced by the

decline in development and growth, sustained minor reductions in revenues. Reduced accounts payable
for capital projects accounts for the decrease in current liabilities. Long-term liabilities were reduced by
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annual debt service payments of $320,000 in the Water Fund, $275,460 in the Sewer Fund, and $298,174
in the Redwood Sanitary Sewer Service District.

$1.6M of fixed asset value was added to the Water Fund through the installation of 19,178 linear feet of
various size water lines and installation of 80 hydrants and associated valves. The Sewer Fund increased
capital assets $1.2M through the addition of 8,504 linear feet of line, 49 manholes and 6 cleanouts.
Completion of the Pine/Booth Sewer Replacement project together with installation of a mechanical bar
screen at the Wastewater Treatment facility added another $5.1M to fixed assets.

Statement of Activities for the Year Ended June 30, 2008

While the City dedicates the receipts from all property taxes exclusively to the Public Safety program,
Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 34 guidelines dictate that those revenues not be shown
as an activity generated resource but rather appear under the heading of general revenues.

Taxable values for FY 08 increased 6.9%. This value increase of $141.7M was due to small increases
from residential and commercial assessments and small increases from light residential and commercial
growth. In March, 2005 the voters approved an increase in a four-year Local Option Levy from $.89 to
$1.49/$1,000 assessed value in support of Public Safety services. The combination of these factors
generated an additional property tax levy of $3.3M for Public Safety (above the permanent rate) of which
approximately 96.5% was collected. While all operating divisions realized increases in personnel rates in
accord with approved labor contracts, some of the major divisions experienced a decrease in total
allocated expenses in FY’08 as compared to FY’07.



CITY OF GRANTS PASS - CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
(In thousands of dollars)

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
REVENUES:
Program Revenues:
Charges for Services $ 6,642 $ 30,623 $ 10402 § 11,334 $ 17,044  § 41,957
Operating Grants 184 541 1,610 2,873 1,194 3414
& Contributions
General Revenues: - -
Taxes 18,241 16,154 - - 18,241 16,154
Intergovernmental 5,072 3,551 257 275 5,329 3,826
Other 4,084 2,342 827 973 4911 3,315
Total Revenues 34,223 53,211 12,496 15,455 46,719 68,666
EXPENSES:
Public Safety 12,104 13,898 - - 12,104 13,898
Transportation 1,430 1,663 - - 1,430 1,663
Building 910 1,179 - - 910 1,179
Parks 1,451 1,667 - - 1,451 1,667
Development 3,279 2,099 - - 3,279 2,099
General Government 219 227 - - 219 227
Solid Waste 1,475 787 - - 1,475 787
Water - 3,019 3,795 3,019 3,795
Sewer - 5,618 4,675 5,618 4,675
Interest 445 212 - - 445 212
Total Expenses 21,313 21,732 8,637 8,470 29,950 30,202
Change in Net Assets
before Transfers 12,910 31,479 3,859 6,985 16,769 38,464
Transfers (347) 122 347 (122) - -
Change in Net Assets 12,563 31,601 4,206 6,863 16,769 38,464
Beginning Net Assets 146,773 115,172 89,878 83,015 236,651 198,187
Prior Period Adjustment - - - - - -
Ending Net Assets $ 159,336 $ 146,773 $ 94,084  $ 89,878 $ 253,420 $ 236,651

The City’s total revenues were $46.7M of which a significant portion, 39.0%, came from taxes, while
47.9% relates to charges for services, including user fees, licenses and permits and intergovernmental
revenues. The graph below defines the sources of the governmental activities revenue.



Revenues by Source: Governmental Activities
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GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

Program Revenues

Tax revenue increased 12.9% in FY’08 generating approximately $2,087,000 more in revenues than in
FY’07. A 6.9% increase in taxable assessed value was the major factor for this change. Revenue from
the property tax levy increased from $12,450,442 to $14,411,920 with actual current year collections
$155,382 less than estimates. The Parkway Redevelopment Agency, a component unit of the City,
experienced 8.5% growth in taxable assessed value that generated a 7.6% increase in its property tax
revenue.

As mentioned previously, the City dedicates all property tax revenue to the Public Safety program. These
monies, together with program-generated revenues, such as dispatch and call-taking contracts, were
sufficient to cover the program costs for the third consecutive year. The general revenues supplement all
other governmental activities except Transportation, which is dependent upon gas tax from the State and
the Street Utility Fee, a fixed monthly fee assessed to all residents and commercial establishments
dedicated to street, sidewalk, and bike path improvements.

The decrease in Charges for Services is largely attributed to annexations that took place in the previous
year (in FY07 approximately $24.5M of the Charges for Services revenues were due to capital assets such
as right-of-way, curbs, sidewalks, and other infrastructure acquired through property annexations).
Building permit revenues generated $830,966 from the issuance of 189 structural permits. The number of
issued structural permits dropped 33.9% from the previous year and experienced declines in all
categories. Total commercial construction units declined by 15 in number and $9.0M in value, while total
residential construction declined by 93 units and $13.2M in value as compared to FY’07. A total of 166
single-family residential permits were issued compared to 234 for FY’07, while the number of multi-
family permits fell to 6 compared to 20 in FY’07. Commercial permits totaled 17 in the current year as
compared to 32 in FY’07.

Transportation system development charge revenues went from $1.3M in FY’07 to $1.0M FY’08, a
decrease of $300,000, reflecting decreased volume in building permits. Parks system development
charges generated $247,957 compared to $338,697 in FY’07 while Storm Drain system development
charges decreased to $96,722 in FY’08 from $146,205 in FY*07. This last noted decrease, as compared
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to declines experienced in other system development charge revenues, reflects development slowdowns in
the Sand Creek Basin that has a specifically designated system development charge to address drainage
issues.

Operating Grants reflect the award received from the Oregon Parks & Recreation Department for
development of Redwood Park and the SAFER Grant for the Fire division. The Transportation program
gas tax receipts were approximately the same as FY’07, declining only $7,358 to a total of $1,361,919 for
the current year.

Program Expenses

The Adopted FY’08 Budget authorized fifteen additional staff. Eight of these positions were projected to
be filled in the Fire Division to adequately staff the two new stations slated to open in 2008. With the
decline in revenues in the Community Development department, the City has acted proactively in
choosing to leave positions “unfilled” with eight positions that are authorized but not filled and by laying
off one employee in the Building and Safety Division. Dispatch services to Josephine County, provided
under contract by the City, were discontinued as of June, 2008 resulting in the layoff of four employees.
Recruitment has still been an issue in law enforcement leaving positions unfilled at the end of the fiscal
year. The Classification and Compensation Study was completed and the results were accepted by
Council in April, 2008. The new job classifications and descriptions and a new salary range will be
brought to Council for implementation in July, 2008.

Compensation adjustments equal to cost-of-living were granted to Police and Fire on January 1, 2008, the
last calendar year of their contract. With labor contracts expiring December 31, 2008, future discussions
are anticipated to continue to center around wages and the cost sharing of benefits.

Total Public Safety program allocated expenses decreased 12.9%, or about $1,793,000 over FY’07,
largely the result of capital spending consuming a larger percentage of total current year expenditures as
compared to the previous year. Approximately $16M of new infrastructure and capital assets were added
to governmental funds for the year, and these amounts (less depreciation of $1.3M and a real estate sale of
$0.9M) contributed to the noteworthy FY’08 increase in the Change of Net Assets. During FY 08, Total
personnel costs added $1.4M, operating supplies and materials increased by $0.3M, and contractual
services/leases decreased by $.4M across all governmental funds (exclusive of capital project funds).

Revenues by Source: Business-Type Activities
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BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES

Program Revenues

Each of the City’s utilities experienced a small amount of growth in the number of accounts. However,
total demand and sales revenues experienced declines in the major business program areas. For example,
Water utility accounts rose 1.7% but revenues from sales declined 11.7% generating $591,477 less in
sales compared to FY’07. Wastewater accounts also grew modestly (+116, or 1.1%) since many
properties outside the municipal boundaries have received sewer only services for a number of years.
Those properties are adding water services as they are becoming more fully developed. The cost-of-
living index of 2.54%, applied to all utility user fees effective January, 2008, impacted Wastewater
revenues. However, total Wastewater service charge revenues declined by 5.4% compared to the
previous year and total wastewater treated declined by 5.7% in total volume.

The Redwood Sanitary Sewer Service District experienced a mere 1.3% increase, $13,231, in user
revenues while the District’s number of accounts increased by 37 or 1.7%. The slight revenue increase
resulted from a Cost-Of-Living adjustment applied to user fees effective January 1, 2008. Continued
infrastructure development and capital improvement projects accounts for a major portion of the FY’08
change in Net Assets.

Fluctuation in revenue between FY’07 and FY’08 were prompted by smaller amounts of infrastructure
contributions of $0.7M in water and $0.3M in wastewater, all the result of developer installed
improvements throughout the community. These revenues have been reclassified from other revenues to
operating grants and contributions.

Program Expenses

Continued work on seeking a cost effective method of disposing of wastes generated by the water
treatment processes increased personnel cost in FY’08. Staff completed a very successful upgrade to the
Water plant’s solids handling facilities which will allow for less staff intervention in the future. Staff will
now have more time to plan for a long-term solution. The addition of two new collection system workers
also improved the Wastewater departmental maintenance efficiency.

Declines in certain operating expenses such as supplies, maintenance, utilities, and professional services
more than offset the $298,518 increase in salaries and wages compared to FY’07. However, total
operating expenses excluding depreciation increased $288,109 or 4.9% compared to FY’07. General,
administrative, and engineering expenses increased $655,219 and were the main reason total expenses
increased over the previous year. :

FY’08 depreciation on capital improvements was $2,135,717 and $70,765 higher than the previous year
due to placing additional fixed assets in service during the year. Large capital assets placed in service
during the year included the completion of the intake structure at the Water Filtration Plant, sewer lines at
Pine and Booth Streets, and the influent pumping system and a second mechanical bar screen in the
primary wastewater treatment system.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY’S FUNDS

Governmental Activities

The General Fund balance ended the year at $7.5 million, an increase of 34.1% or $1,901,315. While all
activities ended the fiscal year under their respective appropriation limit, the most notable was Planning
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and Building and Safety, coming in at a total of $565,155 under budget expenditure appropriations.
Temporary Building and Safety activity surpluses resulted from not filling open positions and reduced
clerical support charges. While many revenue categories were slightly lower than expected due in large
part to lower levels of property development during the year, total tax revenues exceeded estimates. Total
expenditures for the General Fund were $1.7M under appropriation levels and total revenues exceeded
estimates by $.5M for the year.

System development charges are regulated by state statute and provide major revenue sources for
Transportation projects and Lands & Building projects. The Transportation system development charge
is committed to the development of collector and major arterial roadways as specified in City ordinance.
Two Parks system development charges are reported under the Lands & Building Projects Fund. One is
restricted to the acquisition (not development) of future park and trail land while the second, implemented
in June, 2007, is designated for development. The Parkway Redevelopment Agency derives its revenues
from property taxes that are restricted for only projects identified in the Agency’s approved development
plan and debt service. However, this Agency just finished its 20™ and last year of approved tax levies and
will cease to collect property taxes during FY’09.

Other major governmental funds and their respective changes in fund balance are shown in the table
below:

Schedule of Other Major Governmental Fund Balances
As of June 30, 2008 and 2007

2008 2007 Change
Bancroft Bond $  (1,386,260) $  (1,500,626) $ 114,366
Transportation Projects Fund 5,940,096 7,617,579 (1,677,483)
Solid Waste 3,360,485 3,329,906 30,579
Lands & Buildings Project Fund 6,259,092 9,409,938 (3,150,846)
Parkway Redevelopment Agency 3,711,979 3,707,773 4,206
Total Fund Balances $ 17,885,392 $ 22,564,570 $  (4,679,178)

Special assessment revenues of $202,536, the result of assessment payoffs received during the year,
allowed for the repayment on internal loans. Internal loans have been used to provide the necessary
resources, because individual Local Improvement Districts have been insufficient in dollar value to
warrant public borrowing.

Several significant FY’08 Transportation projects were funded by various sources such as the
Redevelopment Agency, system development charges and street utility fees as well as monies from both
the Water and Sewer funds. These projects included additional work on a $3.0M project on Redwood
Avenue and a $1.5M pedestrian safety project on Rogue River Highway.

The $3.2M decrease in the fund balance of the Land & Buildings Project Fund is largely the result of
completing a majority of the total construction for the two new Public Safety stations. In June of 2007,
$9,820,000 of General Obligation Bonds, approved by voters in November, 2006, were issued for the
construction of Public Safety facilities and acquisition of related equipment. The proceeds were placed in
the Lands & Building Project Fund for routine progress payments as construction proceeds.
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Schedule of Other Major Business-type Unrestricted Net Assets
As of June 30, 2008 and 2007

2008 2007 Change
Water Fund $ 4,682,452 $ 3,743,841 $ 938,611
Sewer Fund 2,758,675 5,851,152 (3,092,477)
Harbeck-Fruitdale Sewer District (30,545) (27,170) (3,375)
Redwood Sanitary Sewer Service District 1,403,167 1,266,120 137,047
Total Fund Balances $ 8,813,749 $ 10,833,943 $ (2,020,194

Business-type Activities

The operating segment of the Water Fund, ended the year with an unrestricted fund balance of $1.2M
compared to an ending balance of $1.0M in FY’07. Expenditures excluding capital were under budget by
$117,758 or 3.5%. While revenues for water sales were $331,794 under budget, total excess revenues
were $1.1M for the year, largely a result of lower than planned spending on capital projects. For the
capital projects portion of the fund, expenditures were $590,814 while revenues totaled $1.2M with
$109,828 generated by revenues from operations. Systems development revenues together with interest
earnings made up the difference. This resulted in the Water capital fund increasing from a $2.8M balance
in FY’07 to an ending fund balance of $3.4M in FY’08. Revenues from operations, together with system
development charges, were adequate to fund planned and appropriated projects including: filter upgrades
and modifications to the intake structure at the Water Treatment plant, upgrades to the solids handling
infrastructure, and the 4™ Street water main project.

Both the operating segment and the capital projects segment of the Sewer Fund ended FY’08 with healthy
unrestricted fund balances. Operations ended with a balance of $569,156, up 6.6% from FY’07 and
Capital projects ended with $2.2M as compared to a budgeted estimate of $2.0M. User fees generated
$4.4M, approximately the same amount as FY’07, while system development charge revenues, a
development driven revenue, declined to $581,034 as compared to $685,881 in FY’07.

Among other efforts, construction work was completed on the $4.9M Pine/Booth Street sewer
rehabilitation project. Installation of a second mechanical bar screen and associated odor control
facilities, a $2.5M project, was also completed at the wastewater treatment plant. The completion of these
capital projects resulted in the large decrease of unrestricted net assets in the Sewer Fund.

The Redwood Sanitary Sewer Service District (RSSSD) ended the year with a $1.4M unrestricted fund
balance, about $0.2M higher than planned. Revenues came in at 91.6% of budget while expenditures
ended at 88.9% of appropriations.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

During FY’08, events occurred that were not specifically anticipated at the time of budget hearings. The
Council authorized transfers or other general appropriations to cover these occurrences, most of which
were small in nature during FY08. The Grants Pass Redevelopment Agency made transfers to the City’s
capital project funds based on the progress of various capital projects. Engineering charges of $42,000
for work performed for the operating divisions of the Water Fund and Transportation Fund were also
anticipated to exceed estimates provided for in the original budget and were adjusted in a supplemental
budget resolution.
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Reimbursement received by the Solid Waste Fund for payment of debt service prompted the changes to
that fund. The Solid Waste Fund made an extra bank loan payment in the amount of $168,286 above the
planned amortization schedule. Slightly higher than anticipated revenues received from Local
Improvement District assessments on properties allowed for a greater repayment on the Bancroft Fund
internal loan.

The Transportation program saw the completion of the reconstruction of Washington Boulevard from
Evelyn to Savage Street, installation of the Redwood Avenue/Willow Lane traffic signal, sidewalk
improvements at Wharton Drive, and the bulk of the planned improvements on Redwood Avenue. Other
major Transportation projects in process included Lewis Avenue realignment, W. Park widening, and the
Rogue River Highway pedestrian improvements.

Public Safety field services had unplanned overtime costs related to a number of events and Street
Lighting experienced higher than expected utility costs. The $60,000 extra appropriations needed for
these two areas were provided by availability in the Public Safety support services budget.

A delay in the implementation of a Storm Water and Open Space system development charge together
with start-up implementation costs for the SDC and a Storm Water Utility Fee prompted the changes to
the Storm Water Fund.

A new division, Human Resources, was also created during FY08. Appropriations of $50,000 in the

Administrative Services Fund were moved from the Finance division to this new division of the
Administrative Services Fund.
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CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

At the end of 2008, the City had invested $231,903,658 in a broad range of capital assets, including land,
equipment, buildings, and vehicles, as reflected in the following table which represents a net increase
(additions, deductions and depreciation) of $19.57 million. Please refer to Note 5 for more detailed
information.

The following table reconciles the change in capital assets. Additions include assets acquired or under
construction at year-end. Reductions are for disposition of assets and depreciation.

Change in Capital Assets

(In Millions)
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Beginning Balance 12291 97.56 89.42  84.33 212.33 181.89
Additions 18.53 27.19 11.41 7.15 29.94 3434
Retirement
Other -2.35 0.00 -4.20 0.00 -6.55 0.00
Depreciation -1.68 -1.84 -2.14 -2.06 -3.82 -3.90
Ending Balance 137.41 122.91 9449  89.42 231.9 212.33

Major additions to Governmental Activities assets for the year were generated by Transportation projects
and building the two new Public Safety stations. Progress payments on the new Public Safety stations
added $5.5M to Governmental activity capital assets, Redwood Avenue improvements added $1.9M, and
Rogue River Highway improvements added $1.2M to capital assets. The Business Activities gained
19,178 linear feet of water lines and 8,504 linear feet of sewer lines with a total value of $2.8M.
Developer installed improvements included $370,134 of storm drain improvements. The Pine/Booth
Sewer rehabilitation and installation of a second mechanical screen at the Wastewater Treatment Plant,
added an additional $5.1M to capital assets during the year. Other projects in progress included Lewis
Avenue realignment for $227,000, development of Redwood and Riverside Parks, and ongoing
development and cleanup of the River Road property. The Redwood Sanitary Sewer Service District
gained 51 manholes and 9 cleanouts valued at $164,460.
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Long-Term Debt
At year-end the City had bonds, contracts and notes outstanding that totaled $24,862,664.

Outstanding Debt at Year End
(in millions)

2008 2007
Governmental:

General obligation $ 965§ 10.71
Post-Closure Care costs 2.56 1.45
Notes and Contract payable .93 1.22
Sub Total 13.14 13.38

Business-type Activities:
Revenue Bonds payable  $ 1.88 $ 2.20
Less Unamortized discount -0.01 -0.01
Notes and Contracts Payable 9.85 10.43
Sub Total 11.72 12.62
Total $ 24.86 $ 26.00

No new forms of long-term debt were added during FY’08. Annual debt service payments on land
contracts contributed to the decline in contracts payable while additional estimated costs for post-closure
care at the landfill added $1.1M to that long-term debt.

Payment of debt service on the 1998 Water revenue bonds reduced bonds payable by $320,000 as
reflected in the Business-type activities. Notes and Contracts Payable reflect the annual debt service
payment of $275,460 to the Clean Water State Revolving Loan Fund (SRF) for the City’s Wastewater
capital construction project. The regular annual payment by Redwood Sanitary Sewer Service District, a
component unit, on their SRF loan for construction of a pump and conveyance system completed in
FY’01, was $298,174. Detailed charts about the City’s debt are presented in Note 7 of the financial
statements.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES

The Council, wishing to maintain service levels in our growing community, placed before the voters a
four-year replacement Public Safety levy in 2005 at a $1.49/$1,000 assessed value. The measure was
approved by 51% of the voters with an 83% voter turn-out. It provides a dedicated resource for Public
Safety for fiscal years 2006 through 2009, allowing for longer-term strategic planning of police and fire
services. However, in November of 2008 Council placed a similar levy proposal in front of voters at a
rate of $1.89/$1,000 assessed value intended to finance Public Safety from 2010 through 2013. The
November 2008 proposal failed by a thin margin and Council will now have to decide on a new levy
proposal, program budget cuts starting in fiscal year 2010, or both.

The City has not been immune to the national construction slowdown. The number of issued structural
permits dropped 33.9% from the previous year and experienced declines in all categories. Total
commercial construction units declined by 15 in number and $9.0M in value, while total residential
construction declined by 93 units and $13.2M in value as compared to FY’07. A total of 166 single-
family residential permits were issued compared to 234 for FY’07, while the number of multi-family
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permits fell to 6 compared to 20 in FY’07. Commercial permits totaled 17 in the current year as
compared to 32 in FY’07. This significant change in the issuance of permits, together with a decline in
average median price of local home sales, suggests the City is experiencing a decline from development
trends of several years ago.

Even though the health insurance premium increase for January, 2008 was only 5%, the City budgeted for
a 10% increase in FY’09. With increases nationwide averaging between 12 and 15%, the City needs to be
prepared for increases, not relying on the good experience levels that had kept the premiums low for the
last few years. This budgeting strategy paid off as the quote for renewal reflected an increase of almost
20%. An insurance committee composed of labor representatives, the City’s agent of record, and
management, looked at ways to lower these costs. In the end, a small change in our benefit package
resulted in a quote that only increased 9.71%. The dual choice selection and use of a Health
Reimbursement Arrangement (HRA) will continue to be offered to employees. This effort is deemed a
long-term strategy to encourage support from employees in managing health benefits and costs. While
this change cannot be forced upon labor bargaining members without benefit of negotiation, providing
dual choice allows all employees to make individual selections if they choose.

Labor contracts with the police and fire bargaining units expire December 31, 2008. The City opened
negotiations with police in June, 2008. After mediation, a balanced contract with minimal increases,
locked for three years was agreed upon with both sides recognizing the importance of concessions at a
time when the economy was in turmoil. Fire signed a Memorandum of Understanding with the City for a
one year extension of their contract to receive cost of living based on the October, 2008 Consumer Price
Index. This also was taken as recognition of the economy and the uncertainty of the City’s budget with a
levy up for renewal. The City will be opening negotiations with Fire and Teamsters in the spring of 2009.
As salaries for all these groups escalate, the salary margin for supervisors becomes an issue. And in turn
equity questions arise when comparing management salaries across the organization. Wages and cost
sharing of benefits will continue to be issues brought to the negotiation table.

Staff, at the direction of City Council, has presented to Council a Storm Water Master Plan together with
a Storm Water and drainage system development charge and associated Storm Water utility fee for
implementation. The system development charge was originally designed to be adopted in the fall of
2007 with billing for the monthly utility fee slated to begin in February, 2008. Final hearings and
adoption of the Utility are expected in 2009.

Multiple discussions and workshops with the Council have been conducted dealing with funding
mechanisms for infrastructure. Presently the City offers property owners the opportunity to pay for
improvements fronting their property through the formation of a Local Improvement District (LID).
Property owners gain the benefit of spreading the debt over a period of 5 to 20 years at an interest rate
that is usually significantly lower than that found in the open market. Another financing tool, used
primarily by developers, is an Advanced Finance District whereby property owners, who wish to benefit
from the extension of utility lines and street improvements across their frontage that were installed for
access beyond their boundaries, are required to reimburse the developer for pro-rate costs at the time they
develop. Both of these tools have caused concern regarding methodology of cost allocation and factors
that determine the City’s share of costs. As a result several major transportation projects have been put
on hold because a significant portion of their funding would be generated by LIDs. Additional
modifications to current ordinances are expected to be put before the Council in the spring.

In 2006 the City purchased 250 acres of agricultural land for future City uses including park development.
Prior to the purchase a Phase I Environmental Site Assessment (ESA) was conducted. Three recognized
environmental conditions were identified in the ESA. Of primary concern was an approximately 50 x 50
foot area where pentachlorophenol was mixed with diesel fuel and then applied as a preservative to wood
poles. The purchase agreement provided a credit of $67,280 based on the Phase I ESA. As of December,
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2008 $132,155 has been spent to evaluate and manage the water and soil contamination. Final
remediation and the sharing of those associated costs have not been determined.

External factors that could impact the City include the fiscal health of state government and changes to
the Public Employees Retirement System (PERS). State legislative changes to PERS enacted during
calendar year 2003 resulted in increased rates to all governmental agencies effective July 1, 2003. The
planned increases, some over 50%, caused such a financial burden to cities, school districts and counties,
that PERS modified rates. While the PERS rate for Grants Pass increased from 10.69% to.11.51%,
management elected to self-assess the nearly 5% rate increase, setting aside the difference in a reserve
account, pending the outcome of litigation brought about by unions claiming that the adopted legislation
violated contract rights of employees. The Oregon Supreme Court issued their decision in August, 2005,
reaffirming PERS’ obligation to credit a minimum of 8% on Tier One members’ regular accounts,
approved the new mortality tables initiated by PERS in July of 2003, and mandated PERS to reallocate
1999 earnings, recrediting Tier One member regular accounts at 11.33% instead of 20%. For retired
members, the change in benefits are said to be in the range of a 2% to 8% reduction.

Data provided by PERS indicates the City’s composite retirement rate will decrease from 16.05% to
15.02% for employees covered by Tier One/Tier Two benefits. However, rates for employees covered
under the Oregon Public Service Retirement Plan (OPSRP), developed and implemented for employees
hired after August, 2003, increased an average of 3.50% effective July 1, 2007 for the following 24-
month period. The rate for sworn OPSRP personnel went from 14.45% to 17.76% and from 10.84% to
14.49% for non-sworn personnel. As employees of “baby boomer age” retire over the next five years, the
escalating employer cost of retirement placed on new hires will generate questions about cost of services.
Increased rates were anticipated, estimated, and budgeted through FY’09 and contribution rates will
change again starting in FY’10.

The employee’s share of PERS retirement is 6% and has been paid by the employees following a series of
salary adjustments in the early 1990°s. The City of Grants Pass had been one of few municipal PERS
covered employers in the state that did not pay this benefit. Potential recruitments have been negatively
influenced by this 6% reduction in take-home pay when considering our compensation package and the
employee’s out-of-pocket share of benefits. In addition this issue has been repeatedly raised for a number
of years at the labor bargaining table. Effective July 1, 2007, each of the bargaining groups agreed to a
3% salary reduction in exchange for having the City pay the employee’s share of PERS. It is believed
that this change will assist the City in recruiting quality candidates as well as be of benefit during labor
negotiations when comparing Grants Pass to other municipalities.

State Measure 37, adopted by voters in November, 2004, established new regulations regarding claims for
compensation to certain property owners claiming reduced value from the enactment or enforcement of
various land use regulations. The measure was placed into effect on December 2, 2004 and raises many
questions for local government and land owners attempting to understand application of the measure as it
pertains to their particular circumstances. At minimum, the measure necessitates an application and
review process. While placing the burden of proof on the property owner, there is no doubt that
applications may consume considerable Community Development staff time, with planners and support
personnel conducting research. In November, 2007 the voters of Oregon approved an initiative making
changes to Measure 37. The City Council has adopted a process for accepting claims.

CONTACTING THE CITY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

Our financial report is designed to provide our taxpayers, ratepayers, investors and creditors with an
overview of the City’s finances. If you have any questions about this report or need any clarification of
information please contact the Finance Department at the City of Grants Pass at (541) 474-6360, 101
N.W. “A” Street, Grants Pass, Oregon, 97526.
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CITY OF GRANTS PASS

JOSEPHINE COUNTY, OREGON

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2008

ASSETS

Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables, net
Prepaid Items
Internal Balances
Restricted Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables, net
Capital Assets not being depreciated
Capital Assets, net of Accumulated Depreciation

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Liabilities:

Accounts Payable and Other Current Liabilities
Accrued Payroll
Unearned Revenue
Retainage Payable
Noncurrent Liabilities
Due Within One Year
Due in More than One Year

Total Liabilities

Net Assets:

Invested in Capital Assets, net of related debt (1)
Restricted for Capital Purposes
Unrestricted (1)

Total Net Assets

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

Primary Government

Component Unit

Josephine County
City of Grants
Governmental Business-Type Pass Solid
Activities Activities Total Waste Agency

$ 33,962,682 997,599 34,960,281 $ 1,411,015

6,102,974 1,832,502 7,935,476 4,214

24,089 - 24,089 -

(2,442,156) 2,442,156 - -

1,395,901 6,638,740 8,034,641 -

124,073 111,358 235,431 -
61,509,409 1,731,473 63,240,882

75,901,794 92,760,982 168,662,776 -

176,578,766 106,514,810 283,093,576 1,415,229

1,617,425 336,841 1,954,266 163

864,322 368,039 1,232,361 -

277,513 2,670 280,183 -

1,398,958 935,149 2,334,107 95,000

13,084,847 10,788,071 23,872,918 506,705

17,243,065 12,430,770 29,673,835 601,868

129,195,607 82,828,135 212,023,742 -

3,706,534 - 3,706,534 -

26,433,560 11,255,905 37,689,465 813,361

$ 159,335,701 94,084,040 253,419,741 3 813,361
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CITY OF GRANTS PASS
JOSEPHINE COUNTY, OREGON

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Program Revenues

Operating
Charges for Grants and Capital
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Grants
Primary Government
Governmental Activities
Public Safety $ 12,104,326 % 388,539 $ 100,158 %
Transportation 1,430,601 3,541,708 260
Building 910,259 830,966 4,600
Parks 1,450,608 373,497 79,266
Development 3,278,657 20,758 -
General Government 218,905 1,161,947 -
Solid Waste 1,474,560 325,075 -
Interest 445,088 - -
Total Governmental Activities 21,313,004 6,642,490 184,284
Business- Type Activities
Water 3,019,237 4,461,350 743,524
Sewer 5,617,811 5,940,872 266,616
Total Business-Type Activities 8,637,048 10,402,222 1,010,140
Total Primary Government $ 29,950,052 $ 17,044,712 $ 1,194,424
Component Unit
Josephine County-City of Grants
Pass Solid Waste Agency $ 53,088 $ - $ -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Net Revenue (Expenses) and Changes in Net Assets

Primary Government

Component Unit

General Revenues
Taxes:
Property
Business
Franchise
Transient Room
Intergovernmental-unrestricted
Interest
Trust Receipts - unrestricted
Industrial Payments
Miscellaneous
Transfers
Total General Revenues and Transfers

Change in Net Assets
Beginning Net Assets
Prior Period Adjustment

Ending Net Assets

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

Josephine County
City of Grants
Governmental Business-Type Pass Solid
Activities Activities Total Waste Agency
$ (11,615,629) § - $ (11,615,629) % -
2,111,367 - 2,111,367 -
(74,693) - (74,693) -
(997.,845) - (997,845) -
(3,257,899) - (3,257,899) -
943,042 - 943,042 -
(1,149,485) - (1,149,485) -
(445,088) - (445,088) -
(14,486,230) - (14,486,230) -
- 2,185,637 2,185,637 -
- 589,677 589,677 -
- 2,775,314 2,775,314 -
(14,486,230) 2,775,314 (11,710,916) -
- - - (53,088)
14,411,920 - 14,411,920 -
320,413 - 320,413 -
2,484,617 - 2,484,617 -
1,024,431 - 1,024,431 -
5,071,345 257,045 5,328,390 279,783
1,856,733 407,972 2,264,705 59,310
233,637 67,968 301,605 -
7,151 - 7,151 -
1,985,656 350,236 2,335,892 168,286
(347,481) 347,481 - -
27,048,422 1,430,702 28,479,124 507,379
12,562,192 4,206,016 16,768,208 454,291
146,773,509 89,880,024 236,653,533 359,070
- (2,000) (2,000) -
$ 159,335,701 $ 94,084,040 $ 253,419,741 $ 813,361
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CITY OF GRANTS PASS
JOSEPHINE COUNTY, OREGON

BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2008
SPECIAL REVENUE  DEBT SERVICE CAPITAL PROJECTS
BANCROFT TRANSPORTATION
GENERAL SOLID WASTE BOND PROJECTS
ASSETS:
Assets:
Cash and Investments 5,637,043 1,782,409 $ 143,211 $ 6,467,792
Receivables:
Taxes 982,837 - - -
Intergovernmental 95,011 - - -
Accounts, net 142,844 48,624 2,900
Accrued Interest 9,824 - 11,849 11,212
Notes and Contracts 189,782 601,705 - 577,284
Grants 51,860 - - -
Assessment Liens - - 2,016,624 -
Due from Other Funds 1,630,000 1,540,000 - -
Prepaid Items - - - -
Restricted Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents - - - -
Notes and Taxes Receivable - - -
Accrued Interest Receivable - - - -
Total Assets 8,739,201 3,972,738 $ 2,171,684 3 7,059,188
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES:
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 298,359 10,371 - 492,647
Salaries, Withholdings and Taxes Payable 239,048 177 - 417
Accrued Interest Payable - - 732 -
Due to Other Funds - - 1,540,000 -
Deferred Revenue 522,802 601,705 2,017,212 577,284
Assessment Trust Payable -
Note Payable 196,063 - - -
Retainage Payable - - - 48,744
Total Liabilities 1,256,272 612,253 3,557,944 1,119,092
Fund Balances:
Reserved for Debt Service - - - -
Reserved for Capital Purposes - - - -
Unreserved Reported in:
General Fund 7,482,929 - - -
Special Revenue Funds - 3,360,485 - -
Debt Service Funds - - (1,386,260) -
Capital Projects Funds - - - 5,940,096
Total Fund Balances 7,482,929 3,360,485 (1,386,260) 5,940,096
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 8,739,201 3,972,738 $ 2,171,684 $ 7,059,188

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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CAPITAL PROJECTS

LAND AND
BUILDING PARKWAY TOTAL TOTAL
PROJECTS REDEVELOPMENT NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL
8451376  § 2,285,115 $ 2,252,481 $ 27,019,427
- - - 982,837
- - 108,316 203,327
16,426 - 96,925 307,719
5,252 - 4,905 43,042
170,145 644,331 247271 2,430,518
- - 51,860
- - - 2,016,624
- - - 3,170,000
- 1,395,901 - 1,395,901
- 114,417 - 114,417
- 9,656 - 9,656
8,643,199  § 4449420  $ 2,709.898  $ 37,745,328
355,133 2,169 62,706 1,221,385
60 - 12,492 252,194
- - - 732
1,630,000 - 55,000 3,225,000
170,145 735272 247271 4,871,691
196,063
228,769 - - 277,513
2,384,107 737,441 377,469 10,044,578
3,706,534 - - 3,706,534
- - - 7,482,929
- - 2,332,429 5,692,914
- - - (1,386,260)
2,552,558 3,711,979 - 12,204,633
6,259,092 3,711,979 2,332,429 27,700,750
8,643,199  § 4449420  § 2,709,898  $ 37,745,328
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CITY OF GRANTS PASS
JOSEPHINE COUNTY, OREGON

RECONCILIATION OF BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2008

Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and the government-wide statement of net assets.

Fund Balances $ 27,700,750

The cost of capital assets (land, buildings, improvements, machinery
and equipment, infrastructure, and construction in progress) is
reported as an expenditure in governmental funds. The statement of
net assets includes those capital assets among the assets of the
City as a whole.

Net Capital Assets 135,506,432

Long-term liabilities applicable to the City's governmental activities
are not due and payable in the current period and accordingly are
not reported as fund liabilities. All liabilities, both current and
long-term, are reported in the statement of net assets.

General Obligation Bonds $ (9,645,000)
Post Closure Costs (2,561,675)
Notes and Contracts Payable (736,706)
Net Adjustment (12,943,381)

Accrued compensated absences are not due and payable in the current
period and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Accrued Vacation and Sick Leave (1,344,361)

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period
expenditures and therefore are deferred in the funds.

Deferred Revenue 4,871,691

Internal service funds are used by the City to account for the fleet
operations, support services, administrative service and insurance
services that are provided to the other departments and
agencies on a cost reimbursement basis. The assets and liabilities
of the internal service funds are included in governmental activities
in the Statement of Net Assets.

Internal Service Fund Net Assets 5,544,570

Total Net Assets $ 159,335,701

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF GRANTS PASS
JOSEPHINE COUNTY, OREGON

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

REVENUES:
Taxes
Licenses and Permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for Services
Fines and Forfeitures
Special Assessments
Interest on Investments
Interest on Assessments
Trust Receipts
Contributions
Industrial and Other Loans
Miscellaneous Revenues

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
Public Safety
Transportation
Building
Parks
Development
General Government
Solid Waste

Capital Outlay

Debt Service

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over, (Under)
Expenditures

Other Financing Sources, (Uses)
Sale of Assets
Transfers In
Transfer Out

Total Other Financing
Sources, (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance
Beginning Fund Balance

Ending Fund Balance

SPECIAL REVENUE DEBT SERVICE CAPITAL PROJECTS
BANCROFT TRANSPORTATION
GENERAL SOLID WASTE BOND PROJECTS

$ 15234283  § -3 - -
471,840 3,070 - .
1,686,720 295,276 - 1,362,793
848,070 312,005 - 979,353
253,766 . . .
- . 202,536 -

352,602 150,985 - 327,314

- - 4,634 -

. . - 44,571

- . - 260
1,024,976 12,077 - .
19,872,257 773,413 207,170 2,714,291
12,596,250 - _ .
961,444 - - .
1,512,891 - . .
1,560,225 - . .
156,100 - 81,301 -

- 369,431 - -

- 58,983 - 5,266,007
1,020,445 294,420 - -
17,807,355 722,834 81,301 5,266,007
2,064,902 50,579 125,869 (2,551,716)
931,829 38,000 . 874,233
(1,095,407) (58,000) (11,503) -
(163,578) (20,000) (11,503) 874,233
1,901,324 30,579 114,366 (1,677,483)
5,581,605 3,329,906 (1,500,626) 7,617,579
$ 7482,929 § 3,360,485  $ (1,386,260) 5,940,096

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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CAPITAL PROJECTS

LAND AND

BUILDING PARKWAY TOTAL TOTAL
PROJECTS REDEVELOPMENT  NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL
- % 1,885277  $ 1,024431  $ 18,143,991
. - 17,465 492,375
437,951 - 1,442,289 5,225,029
503,513 - 862,874 3,505,815
- - - 253,766
- . - 202,536
511,262 216,507 113,612 1,672,282
- - - 4,634
. 189,066 - 233,637
4,600 - . 4,860
- - 7,151 7,151
5,419 831 6,306 1,049,609
1,462,745 2,291,681 3,474,128 30,795,685
. - - 12,596,250
- - 1,529,698 1,529,698
- . - 961,444
- - - 1,512,891
. 1,808,695 24,836 3,393,756
i R - 237,401
- - - 369,431
6,309,406 . 117,883 11,752,279
- 478,730 2,464 1,796,109
6,309,406 2,087,475 1,674,881 34,149,259
(4,846,661) 4,206 1,799,247 (3,353,574)
878,942 - - 878,942
866,873 . 50,000 2,760,935
(50,000) (1,915,027) (3,129,937)
1,695,815 - (1,865,027) - 509,940
(3,150,846) 4206 (65,780) (2,843,634)
9,409,938 3,707,773 2,398,209 30,544,384
6,259,092 § 3,711,979 $ 2332429 $ 27,700,750

-025 .



CITY OF GRANTS PASS
JOSEPHINE COUNTY, OREGON

RECONCILIATION OF STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - TO
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance and
the government-wide statement of activities

Excess of Revenues over Expenditures $ (2,843,634)

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in
the statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount
by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period.

Capitalized Expenditures $ 13,735,442
Capital Contributions 2,290,412
Depreciation Expense (1,331,406)
Net Adjustment 14,694,448

Under the modified accrual basis of accounting used in the governmental funds.
expenditures are not recognized for transactions that are not normally paid with
expendable available financial resources. In the statement of activities, however,
which is presented on the accrual basis of accounting, expenses and liabilities
are reported regardless of when financial resources are available. This
adjustment combines the net changes in liability balances.

Compensated Absences $ (80,478)
General Obligation Bond Payments 1,060,000
Post Closure Costs (1,115,376)
Notes and Contracts Payable 291,021
Net Adjustment 155,167

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds.

Property Taxes $ 97,390
Special Assessments (59,583)
Notes and Contracts (85,887)
Net Adjustment (48,080)

Internal service funds are used by the City to account for the fleet
operations, support services, administrative service and insurance
services that are provided to the other departments and
agencies on a cost reimbursement basis. The revenues and expenses
of the internal service funds are included in governmental activities
in the statement of activities.

Internal Service Fund Change in Net Assets 604,291

Change in Net Assets $ 12,562,192

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF GRANTS PASS
JOSEPHINE COUNTY, OREGON

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2008
HARBECK-
WATER SEWER FRUITDALE
FUND FUND SEWER SERVICE
ASSETS:
Current Assets
Cash and Investments $ 503,017 $ 311,836 $ 18
Prepaid Items - - -
Receivables
Taxes 1 - -
Accounts, net 710,262 642,569 91
Notes 148,031 176,363 28,161
Grants -
Accrued Interest 9,839 11,813 85
Due From Other Funds - - -
Restricted Assets
Cash and Investments 3,559,199 1,991,240 -
Accrued Interest and Accounts Receivable 943 2,307 -
Notes - 30,148 -
Total Current Assets 4,931,292 3,166,276 28,355
Capital Assets
Capital Assets, Net 50,274,438 34,514,260 69,015
Total Capital Assets 50,274,438 34,514,260 69,015
Total assets $ 55205730  $ 37,680,536 § 97,370
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS:
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable $ 69,159 § 51,689 § -
Salaries, Withholdings and Taxes Payable 155,847 201,172 -
Accrued Interest Payable 7,007 70,894 -
Bonds, Notes Payable Within One Year 340,000 284,989 -
Due To Other Funds - - -
Deferred Revenue - - -
Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets
Accounts Payable 9.058 77,925 -
Salaries, withholdings and taxes payable 5,099 5,921 -
Deferred Revenue - - -
Contractor Retainage 2,670 - -
Total Current Liabilities 588,840 692,590 -
Long-Term Liabilities
Notes Payable - 5,915,705 58,900
General Obligation Revenue Bonds Payable 1,527,802 - -
Total Long-Term Liabilities 1,527,802 5,915,705 58,900
Total Liabilities 2,116,642 6,608,295 58,900
NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets, net of related debt 48,406,636 28,313,566 69,015
Unrestricted 4,682,452 2,758,675 (30,545)
Total Net Assets 53,089,088 31,072,241 38,470
Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 55205730 $ 37,680,536  §$ 97,370

The accompanying notes are an-in%ggr-al part of this statement.




GOVERNMENTAL

REDWOOD ACTIVITIES
SANITARY INTERNAL
SEWER SERVICE TOTAL SERVICE FUNDS
$ 182,728 $ 997,599 $ 6,943,255

- - 24,089

681 682 -

101,800 1,454,722 67,047

2,580 355,135 -

226 21,963 -

- - 55,000

1,088,301 6,638,740 -

77,960 81,210 -

- 30,148 -

1,454.276 9,580,199 7,089,391
9,634,742 94,492,455 1,904,771
9,634,742 94,492,455 1,904,771

$ 11,089,018 $ 104,072,654 § 8,994,162
$ 3,404 $ 124252 $ 395,308
- 357,019 612,128

47,705 125,606 -

310,160 935,149 -

86,983 -

- 11,020 -

. 2,670 -

361,269 1,642,699 1,007,436

3,285,664 9,260,269 -

- 1,527,802 -

3,285,664 10,788,071 -
3,646,933 12,430,770 1,007,436
6,038,918 82,828,135 1,904,771
1,403,167 8,813,749 6,081,955
7,442,085 91,641,884 7,086,726

$ 11,089,018  § 104,072,654 $ 8,994,162

Reconciliation of Net Assets to page 18

Net Assets p. 24A

Internal Service Fund Net Assets

Total Net Assets p. 18
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CITY OF GRANTS PASS
JOSEPHINE COUNTY, OREGON
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

HARBECK-
WATER SEWER FRUITDALE
FUND FUND SEWER DISTRICT
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for Services $ 4,461,350 § 4,936,005 $ -
Special assessments - - 1,326
Trust receipts 64,828 3,140 -
Miscellaneous 240,740 64,054 -
Total Operating Revenue 4,766,918 5,003,199 1,326
OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and Wages 709,794 766,696 -
Operating Supplies 341,424 1,047,656 -
Repairs and Maintenance 83,979 90,908 -
Utilities 253,230 357,358 -
Professional Services 494,675 101,773 803
General, Administrative and Engineering 188,529 1,411,275
Depreciation and Amortization 911,555 1,001,181 3,210
Total Operating Expenses 2,983,186 4,776,847 4,013
Total Operating Income (Loss) 1,783,732 226,352 (2,687)
NONOPERATING INCOME (LOSS)
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets - - -
Intergovernmental - 245,708 -
Taxes - - -
Interest Income 181,254 92,965 102
Interest Expense (96,989) (216,641) (2,000)
Total Nonoperating Income (Expense) 84,265 122,032 (1,898)
Capital Contribution 743,524 266,616 -
Income (Loss) Before Transfers 2,611,521 615,000 (4,585)
TRANSFERS
Transfers In 1,284,000 3,139,800 -
Transfers Out (1,416,000) (2,669,800) -
Total Transfers (132,000) 470,000 -
Change in Net Assets 2,479,521 1,085,000 (4,585)
Beginning Net Assets 50,609,567 29,987,241 45,055
Prior Period Adjustment - - (2,000)
Ending Net Assets $ 53,089,088 $ 31,072,241 $ 38,470

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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GOVERNMENTAL

REDWOOD ACTIVITIES
SANITARY SEWER INTERNAL
SERVICE DISTRICT TOTAL SERVICE FUNDS

$ 1,004,867 $ 10,402,222 $ 10,163,852

- 1,326 -

- 67,968 -

- 304,794 144,278

1,004,867 10,776,310 10,308,130

- 1,476,490 4,089,729

35,338 1,424,418 439,055

64,791 239,678 193,490

23,012 633,600 114,495

13,345 610,596 576,634

175,058 1,774,862 3,999,799

219,771 2,135,717 351,568

531,315 8,295,361 9,764,770

473,552 2,480,949 543,360

- 245,708 37,077

54,448 328,769 259,020

(148,088) (463,718) -

(93,640) 110,759 296,097

- 1,010,140 -

379,912 3,601,848 839,457

- 4,423,800 81,000
- (4,085,800) (50,000)

- 338,000 31,000

379,912 3,939,848 870,457

7,062,173 87,704,036 7,116,269

- (2,000) -

$ 7,442,085 § 91,641,884 $ 7,986,726

Change in Net Assets $ 3,939,848
Internal Service Fund Change in Net Assets 266,168
Total Business Type Change in Net Assets $ 4,206,016
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CITY OF GRANTS PASS
JOSEPHINE COUNTY, OREGON

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Cash Received from Customers
Cash Paid to Suppliers
Cash Paid to Employees
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities
Transfers In
Transfers Out
Intergovernmental
Taxes Collected
Decrease (Increase) in Notes Receivable
Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities

Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities
Proceeds from Issuance of Debt
Principal Payments on Notes
Principal Payments on Revenue Bonds
Interest Paid on Bonds and Contracts
Acquisition and Construction of Capital Assets
Disposition of Property
Net cash provided (used) by capital financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest on Investments

Net increase (decrease) in cash and investments

Cash and investments, beginning of year
Cash and investments, end of year

Composition of cash and investments, end of year
Current cash and investments
Restricted cash and investments

Total cash and investments

Noncash Capital Transactions
Developer Installed Public Utility Improvements

Reconciliation of Operating Income to
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Operating Income
Depreciation and Amortization
(Increase) Decrease in Receivables
Increase (Decrease) in Payables
Increase (Decrease) in Deferred Revenue
Increase (Decrease) in Payroll Liabilities

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

The accompanying notes are ag jntegral part of this statement.

HARBECK-
WATER SEWER FRUITDALE

FUND FUND SEWER DISTRICT

$ 47769626 S 4944399 $ 1313
(1,405,091) (2,979,606) (803)
(668,695) (744,173) -

2,695,840 1,220,620 510
1,284,000 3,139,800 -
(1,416,000) (2,669,800) -

- 245,708 -

70,632 63,706 1,040

(61,368) 779,414 1,040

- (275,460) -
(317,622) ; (1,100)
(96,989) (216,641) (2,000)
(1,391,318) (5,581,009) .
(1,805,929) (6,073,110 (3.100)

181,254 92,965 102
1,009,797 (3,980,111) (1,448)

$ 3,052,419 $ 6,283,187 $ 1,466
$ 4062216  $ 2,303,076 $ 18
$ 503,017 $ 311,836 § 18
3,559,199 1,991,240 -

$ 4062216  $ 2,303,076 $ 18
$ 743,504 § 266,616 $ -
$ 1,783,732 $ 226352 $ (2,687)
911,555 1,001,181 3210

2,708 (58,800) (13)

(43,254) 29,364 -

41,099 22,523 -

$ 2,695,840 $ 1,220,620 $ 510




REDWOOD INTERNAL
SANITARY SERVICE
SEWER SERVICE TOTAL FUNDS

$ 981,571 $ 10,696,909  §$ 10,327,541
(320,977) (4,706,477) (5,318,788)
- (1,412,868) (3,912,363)

660,594 4,577,564 1,096,390

. 4,423,800 206,000
- (4,085,800) (50,000)

. . 37,077

- 135,378 -

X 473,378 193,077

(1,516) (276,976) y

(298,174) (616,896) -

(148,088) (463,718) -
(164,460) (7,136,787) (275,537)
(612,238) (8,494 377) (275,537)

54,448 328,769 259,020

102,804 (2,868,958) 1,272,950

1,168,225 $ 10,505,297  $ 5,670,305

$ 1,271,029 $ 7,636,339 $ 6,943,255
$ 182,728 $ 997,599  $ 6,943,255
1,088,301 6,638,740 .

$ 1,271,029 $ 7,636,339 3 6,943,255
$ - $ 1,010,140  $ -
$ 473,552 $ 2,480,949  $ 543,360
219,771 2,135,717 351,568

(23,296) (79,401) 19,411

(9,433) (23,323) 4,685

; 63,622 177,366

$ 660,594 $ 4,577,564 $ 1,096,390
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CITY OF GRANTS PASS
JOSEPHINE COUNTY, OREGON

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2008

ASSETS:

Cash and Investments
Receivables:
Accounts, net

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Building Permit Suspense
Contractor Escrow Payable
Miscellaneous Trust Liabilities
Water Deposits
Deposit Suspense

Total liabilities

AGENCY FUND

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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3,582,922

29,328
85,547
2,964
3,341,870
115,388
7,825

3,582,922




CITY OF GRANTS PASS
JOSEPHINE COUNTY, OREGON

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the City of Grants Pass, Oregon, have been prepared in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United State of America (GAAP) as applied to government
units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant of the City's
accounting policies are described below.

THE FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY

The City of Grants Pass is a municipal corporation governed by an elected mayor and eight-member council.
As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, these financial
statements present the City and its component units, entities for which the City is considered to be
financially accountable, as defined under GASB Statement 39. Blended component units, although legally
separate entities are, in substance, part of the City’s operations and so data from these units are combined
with data of the City. As of June 30, 2008, the City had three blended component units requiring disclosure.
The blended component units have a June 30 year end. There is one discretely presented component unit.

The City reports the following blended component units:

Parkway Redevelopment Agency (“The Agency”) — The Agency is governed by a board comprised of
the City Council and the Mayor of Grants Pass.

Harbeck-Fruitdale Sewer District (“The District”) — The District is governed by a board comprised of
the City Council and the Mayor of Grants Pass.

Redwood Sanitary Sewer Service District (“The Service District”) — The Service District is governed
by a board comprised of the City Council and the Mayor of Grants Pass.

The City reports the following discretely presented component unit:

Josephine County-City of Grants Pass Solid Waste Agency (“The Solid Waste Agency”) — The Solid
Waste Agency is governed by a board comprised of representatives of each government, not more than
one of which shall be an elected member of each governing board. By agreement, the City has
managing jurisdiction and shall report the Agency as a component unit for audit and budgetary
purposes.

Complete financial statements for each of these component units may be obtained at the City’s
Administrative offices located at the following address:

City of Grants Pass

101 N.W. “A” Street
Grants Pass, Oregon 97526
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CITY OF GRANTS PASS
JOSEPHINE COUNTY, OREGON

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The government-wide financial statements (i.e. the statement of net assets and the statement of changes in
net assets) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government and its
component units. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements.
Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are
reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for
support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
segments are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a
specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment
and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a
particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are
reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds and the fiduciary fund,
even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual
governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund
financial statements.

MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING, AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT
PRESENTATION

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary funds. Revenues are recorded when earmned and
expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property
taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the
government considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current
fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.
However, debt service expenditures are recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all
considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period.
Only the portion of special assessments receivable due within the current fiscal period is considered to be
measurable to accrue as revenue of the current period. All other revenue items are considered to be
measurable and available only when cash is received by the government.
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CITY OF GRANTS PASS
JOSEPHINE COUNTY, OREGON

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The government reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund - This fund accounts for all financial resources and expenditures of the City, except those
required to be accounted for in another fund. The principal revenue source is property taxes.

Solid Waste Fund — This fund accounts for the municipal portions of franchise management for the two
solid waste franchises in the City. The principal revenue is charges for services.

Bancroft Bond Fund — This fund accounts for funds received from property owners to satisfy
assessments against their property.

Transportation Projects Fund — This fund accounts for well-maintained street and drainage systems in
addition to new street and sidewalk construction and major maintenance such as street overlays and
seals. The principal revenue sources are utility fees, gas tax, and system development charges.

Land and Building Projects Fund — This fund accounts for the purchase of property, construction of
buildings and major repair and replacement projects for the City’s park land and facilities. The
principal revenue sources are intergovernmental revenue, general obligation bonds and system
development charges.

Parkway Redevelopment Agency Fund — This fund accounts for the general administration of the
Agency and for the acquisition and rehabilitation of blighted and deteriorated areas within the
designated urban renewal areas. The primary funding source is property tax revenue and proceeds
from the issuance of bonds.

The government reports the following major proprietary funds:

Sewer Fund — This fund accounts for the operations of the Sewer Fund which is financed primarily
through user charges to the general public.

Water Fund - This fund accounts for the revenues and expenses of the City’s water utility. The
primary revenue source is fees for service.

Harbeck-Fruitdale Sewer District - This fund accounts for sanitation services to properties within the
boundaries of the District. The principal revenue source is assessments.

Redwood Sanitary Sewer Service District - This fund accounts for sanitation infrastructure to
properties within the boundaries of the District. The principal revenue source is user charges.

Additionally, the government reports the following funds:
Internal Service Funds - The internal service funds account for the fleet operations, support services,
administrative services and insurance services that are provided to the other departments and agencies
on a cost reimbursement basis.

Fiduciary Fund (Agency Fund) — This fund accounts for the City’s monies held for others and the
City’s role is purely custodial. This includes pass-through grants, deposits, donations for organizations
and funds collected for other governments.
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CITY OF GRANTS PASS
JOSEPHINE COUNTY, OREGON

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, generally
are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those
standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.
Governments also have the option of following subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type
activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation. The City has elected not to follow subsequent
private-sector guidance.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments-in-lieu of taxes and other charges between the
government's water and sewer function and various other functions of the government. Elimination of these
charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or
privileges provided and 2) operating grants and contributions. Internally dedicated resources are reported as
general revenues rather than as program revenues.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection
with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the City’s
enterprise funds, and of the City's internal service funds are charges to customers for sales and services.
Operating expenses for enterprise funds and internal service funds include the cost of sales and services,
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this
definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for the same purpose, it is the government's
policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

BUDGETS

The City, the Agency, the District, the Service District and the Solid Waste Agency budget all funds as
required by Oregon State Budget Law. The resolution authorizing appropriations for each fund sets the
level by which expenditures cannot legally exceed appropriations. Levels of control established by the
resolution for the General, Capital Projects, Proprietary and Internal Service Funds are by department,
function or program. The levels of control established by the resolution for the Solid Waste Fund are field
operations, general program operations, capital projects and other expenditures. Expenditure budgets are
appropriated at the following object levels for each of the remaining funds, personal services, materials and
services, capital outlay, interfund transactions, debt service and operating contingency.
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CITY OF GRANTS PASS
JOSEPHINE COUNTY, OREGON

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Unexpected additional resources or appropriations may be added to the budget through the use of a
supplemental budget. Original and supplemental budgets require hearings before the public, publications in
newspapers, and approval by the City Council. Original and supplemental budgets may be modified by the
use of appropriation transfers between the levels of control. Such transfers require approval by passing a
Council resolution or ordinance authorizing the transfer. All budget amendments are subject to the
limitations put forth in the Oregon Revised Statues, Chapters 294.305 through 294.565 (Oregon Budget
Law). Supplemental appropriations, permitted by Oregon Budget Law, were authorized by the City Council
during the fiscal year.

Budget amounts presented herein are as originally adopted or as amended by the City Council. There were
three supplemental budgets and several transfers of appropriations. Budget appropriations lapse at year end.

The City, the Agency, the District, the Service District and the Solid Waste Agency budgets are on the
modified accrual basis of accounting. Budgeted intergovernmental revenues between the Agency, the
District and the City are accounted for as transfers on a GAAP basis.

The City also utilized encumbrances as a method of controlling budgeted appropriations and line item
budget control. Encumbrances, which are purchase commitments to acquire goods or services yet to be
received, are recognized as charges against budgeted appropriations during the year. At year end, any
outstanding encumbrances are canceled and the charges against budgeted appropriations for these
encumbrances are reversed. Encumbrances are not recognized as expenditures for budgetary or generally
accepted accounting principles purposes in these basic financial statements.

Expenditures of the various funds were within authorized appropriations for the year ended June 30, 2008.
ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and labilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND NET ASSETS OR EQUITY

Cash and Investments

The City maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by all funds. Each fund type’s
portion of this pool is displayed on the balance sheet as “cash and investments.”

Receivables and Payables
Activity between funds that are representative of lending and borrowing arrangements outstanding at
the end of the fiscal year are referred to as “due to \ from other funds.”. Any residual balances

outstanding between the governmental and business-type activities are reported in the government-wide
financial statements as “internal balances.”

-38-



CITY OF GRANTS PASS
JOSEPHINE COUNTY, OREGON

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a fund balance reserve
account in applicable governmental funds to indicate that they are not expendable available financial
resources.

Property taxes are levied as of July 1 on property assessed as of January 1¥. The tax levy is due November
15, with an optional payment method of 1/3 due November 15, 1/3 due January 15, and 1/3 due March 15.
Taxes paid in full before November 15 are provided a 3 percent discount. The billings are considered
delinquent after the appropriate due date, at which time the applicable property is subject to lien, and
penalties and interest are assessed.

Notes and contracts receivable are recorded at par. Interest assessed is recorded as revenue when the
payment becomes due.

Receivables for federal and state grants, and state, county and local shared revenue are recorded as revenue
in all funds as earned. The receivables for state, county and local shared revenue are recorded in accounts
receivable.

Investment earnings (e.g., accrued interest receivable) are recorded as revenue in all fund types as earned on
investments.

Restricted Assets

Certain assets in various governmental funds are classified as restricted assets because their use is
completely restricted for the repayment of outstanding bonds, system expansion, construction projects or
other legal requirements.

Capital assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges,
sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities
columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the government as assets
with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of two years. Such
assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital
assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation. The costs of normal maintenance
and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized when projects are constructed. Interest
incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of the

capitalized value of the assets constructed.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight line method. The estimated useful lives of capital assets are as

follows:

Buildings 20-50 years
Supply and distribution systems, including utility plant 20-75 years
Equipment 5-20 years
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CITY OF GRANTS PASS
JOSEPHINE COUNTY, OREGON

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Capitalized Interest

Interest is capitalized on capital assets acquired with tax-exempt debt. The amount of interest to be
capitalized is calculated by offsetting interest expense incurred from the date of the borrowing until
completion of the project with interest earned on invested proceeds over the same period. For the year
ended June 30, 2008, no interest was capitalized on capital assets.

Grants

Unreimbursed expenditures due from grantor agencies are reflected in the basic financial statements as
receivables and revenues. Grant revenues are recorded at the time eligible expenditures are incurred. Cash
received from grantor agencies in excess of related grant expenditures is recorded as a liability in the
balance sheet and statement of net assets.

Compensated absences

It is the government's policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick pay
benefits. The City has a policy to pay a percentage of unpaid sick leave upon retirement or termination of
employment in good standing, only after 10 years of continuous service by the employee. All vacation and
sick pay is accrued when incurred in the government-wide, and proprietary financial statements. A liability
for these amounts is not reported in governmental funds in accordance with Governmental Accounting
Standards Board Statement No. 16 Accounting for Compensated Absences, unless the compensated
absences have matured (due to resignation or retirement).

Long-term obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements,
long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental
activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net assets. Bond premiums and
discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective
interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance
costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well
as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other
financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while
discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld
from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

Workers’ Compensation Insurance
The City is self-insured for workers’ compensation. Premiums are paid to the Insurance Service Fund from
operating divisions and are available to pay claims, claims reserves and administrative costs of the program.

Estimated claims of $116,841 have been accrued as a lability of the fund and are included in accounts
payable.
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CITY OF GRANTS PASS
JOSEPHINE COUNTY, OREGON

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Fund equity/Net assets

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for amounts that
are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for use for a specific purpose.
Designations of fund balance represent tentative management plans that are subject to change.

Net assets comprise the various net earnings from operations, nonoperating revenues, expenses and
contributions of capital. Net assets are classified in the following three categories.

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt — consists of all capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds or other borrowings that are
attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

Restricted — consists of external constraints placed on net asset use by creditors, grantors,
contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or constraints imposed by law through
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted net assets — consists of all other net assets that are not included in the other categories
previously mentioned.

Reservations of Net Assets and Fund Balances

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for amounts that
are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for use for a specific purpose.
Designations of fund balance represent tentative management plans that are subject to change.

Statement of Cash Flows

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the proprietary fund types deposit monies into a common cash
and investment pool of the City. The funds use this pool as a demand deposit account and, accordingly, all
amounts in the pool are considered cash and cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents include
investments with an original maturity date of three months or less at date of purchase. In addition, all
unrestricted cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash and cash equivalents are grouped together for
purposes of the statement of cash flows.
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CITY OF GRANTS PASS
JOSEPHINE COUNTY, OREGON

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Cash and Investments at June 30, 2008 (recorded at fair value) consisted of:

Deposits with Financial Institutions:

Petty Cash $ 1,200
Demand Deposits 559,640
Investments 47,428,019

Total $ 47,988,859
Unrestricted $ 34,960,281
Restricted 8,034,641
Fiduciary Fund 3,582,922
Component Unit 1,411,015

Total $ 47,988,859

DEPOSITS

State statutes require that the City obtain from its depositories a certificate of participation for the full
amount of the City's deposits that exceed FDIC coverage. The depositories are required to pledge, with
an independent collateral pool manager, as agent for the City, securities in the City's name at least
equal to twenty-five percent of the face value of the certificate of participation issued to the City. The
City’s deposits at year-end were covered, as required by law, by federal depository insurance or by
certifications of participation backed by securities held by financial institutions acting as agents for the
City in the City’s name.

Deposits consist of bank demand deposits. The carrying amount of deposits is $559,640. The total
bank balance per the bank statements is $1,428,936. Of these deposits, $111,857 is covered by federal
depository insurance and $329,270 is collateralized by securities held by financial institutions acting as
agents for the City in the City’s name, and the remaining is uninsured and uncollateralized. At June 30,
2008, the collateral was sufficient to meet the requirements of Oregon Law.

INVESTMENTS
No more than the stated percentage of the overall portfolio will be invested in each of the following
categories of securities:

U.S. Treasury Obligations 75%
Local Government Investment Pool 75%
Certificates of Deposit (CD) 75%
Bankers' Acceptances (BA's) 50%
TCD’s Savings and Loans 35%
Repurchase Transactions 25%
US Agency Notes 100%

There were no known violations of legal or contractual provisions for investments.
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As of June 30, 2008, the City had the following investments and maturities.

Investment Maturities (in months)

Investment Type Fair Value Less than 3 3-17 18-59
Certificates of Deposit/ Money Market $ 16,217,417 15,967,417 250,000 -
State Treasurer's investment pool 31,210,602 31,210,602 - -
Total $ 47,428,019 47,178,019 250,000 -

Investments are valued at fair value as required by GASB 31. There is no material difference between
fair value of the City’s position in the State Treasurer’s Local Governmental Investment Pool and the
value of the pool shares at June 30, 2008.

Interest Rate Risk

In general, the City’s portfolio shall be managed by purchasing securities and holding them until their
specified maturity date. However, under certain market conditions, when it becomes advantageous, the
Investment Officer may sell securities prior to their maturity date and reinvest the proceeds in higher
yielding instruments.

Oregon Revised Statutes require investments to not exceed a maturity of 18 months, except when the
local government has adopted a written investment policy that was submitted to and reviewed by the
Oregon Short-Term Fund Board (OSFTB).

The City limits investment maturities as follows for operating funds:

Under 30 days 10% minimum
Under 90 days 50% minimum
Under 180 days 80% minimum
Under 360 days 90% minimum

100% of all operating funds shall mature within 18 months, and only those funds reserved for capital
projects and assessment proceeds may be invested at maturities greater than 18 months.

Credit Risk

Neither the Oregon Revised Statutes nor the City’s investment policy limits investments as to credit
rating for securities purchased from U.S. Government Agencies. The City’s investments in U.S.
Government Agencies were rated AAA by Standard & Poor’s and Aaa by Moody’s Investor Service.
The State Pool is unrated.

Oregon Revised Statutes require bankers’ acceptances to be guaranteed by and carried on the books of,
a qualified financial institution, eligible for discount by Federal Reserve System, and issued by a
qualified financial institution whose short-term letter of credit rating is rated in the highest category by
one or more nationally recognized statistical rating organizations.

- 43 -



CITY OF GRANTS PASS
JOSEPHINE COUNTY, OREGON

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Concentration of Credit Risk
To avoid incurring unreasonable risks inherent to over-investing in specific instruments or in individual
financial institutions, the City’s investment policy sets maximum limits on the percentage of the
portfolio that can be invested in any one type of security. At June 30, 2008 the City was in compliance
with all percentage restrictions.

Oregon Revised Statutes require no more than 25 percent of the moneys of local government to be
invested in bankers’ acceptances of any qualified financial institution. Amounts in the State
Treasurer’s Local Government Investment Pool are not required by law to be collateralized.

3. ASSESSMENTS RECEIVABLE

Assessments receivable represent the uncollected amounts levied against benefited properties for the costs of
local improvements. Since the assessments are liens against the properties, an allowance for uncollectible
amounts is not deemed necessary. Assessments are payable over a period of ten years and bear interest at 7% to
10.64%. At June 30, 2008, the City’s delinquent assessments receivable totaled $20,146.

4. NOTES AND CONTRACTS RECEIVABLE

Notes and Contracts Receivable consisted of the following at June 30, 2008:

CDBG - HUD Loans Receivable $ 203,480

Josephine County Solid Waste Note Receivable 601,705

Other Notes Receivable 1,625,333
$ 2430518
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The changes in capital assets for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 are as follows:

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES CAPITAL ASSETS

June 30, 2007 Additions Disposals June 30, 2008

Capital Assets, not being depreciated
Land $ 59,299,272 $ 2,767,061 § 556,920 $ 61,509,413
Construction in Progress 4,741,571 3,831,552 482,367 8,090,756
Total, not being depreciated 64,040,843 6,598,613 1,039,287 69,600,169
Buildings 4,582,759 4,582,759
Improvements 5,902,050 1,680,531 187,786 7,394,795
Machinery & Equipment 4,956,197 215,139 5,171,336
Infrastructure 63,114,793 10,027,543 1,118,364 72,023,972
Total, being depreciated 78,555,799 11,923,213 1,306,150 89,172,862

Less Accumulated Depreciation

Buildings 2,137,998 106,747 2,244,745
Improvements 2,750,917 217,261 2,968,178
Machinery & Equipment 2,914,521 403,711 3,318,232
Infrastructure 11,880,652 1,080,985 130,964 12,830,673
Total Accumulated Depreciation 19,684,088 1,808,704 130,964 21,361,828
Total Capital Assets being Depreciated, net 58,871,711 10,114,509 1,175,186 67,811,034
Governmental Activities Capital Assets, net $ 122,912,554 $ 16,713,122 $ 2214473 $§ 137,411,203

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental
Funds

Transportation $ 133,978
Parks 132,506
Public Safety 1,107,620
General Government 20,793
Development 297,242
Building 84,208
Solid Waste 32,357

$ 1,808,704
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BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES CAPITAL ASSETS

Jure 30, 2007 Additions Disposals June 30, 2008

Capital Assets, not being depreciated
Land $ 858,712  § - $ 4900 $ 853,812
Construction in Progress 4,510,589 563,577 4,196,508 877,658
Total, not being depreciated 5,369,301 563,577 4,201,408 1,731,470
Buildings 6,486,852 - - 6,486,852
Improvements 1,798,082 - - 1,798,082
Machinery & Equipment 8,423,714 4,455,636 - 12,879,350
Infrastructure 95,805,989 6,387,880 - 102,193,869
Total, being depreciated 112,514,637 10,843 516 - 123,358,153

Less Accunmlated Depreciation

Buildings 1,748,432 167,122 - 1915,554
Improvements 650,376 80,620 - 730,996
Machinery & Equipment 2,580,684 432 262 - 3,012,946
Infrastructure 23,478,776 1,458 896 - 24937672
Total Accumulated Depreciation 28,458,268 2,138,900 - 30,597,168
Total Capital Assets being Depreciated, net 84,056,369 8,704 616 - 92,760,985
Business-Type Activities Capital Assets, net $ 89425670 $ 9268193 $ 4201408 § 94492455

6. INTERFUND RECEIVABLE/ PAYABLE AND TRANSFERS

The composition of interfund balances as of June 30, 2008, are as follows:

General Fund

Solid Waste Fund
Transportation Capital Projects
Bancroft Bond Fund

Land and Building Projects
Nonmajor governmental Funds
Internal Service Funds

Total Funds

Due From Due To
Other Funds Other Funds
$ 1,630,000 -
1,540,000 -
- 1,540,000
- 1,630,000
- 55,000
55,000 -
$ 3,225,000 3,225,000

In FY’07, the City used an interfund loan from the General fund to purchase property for future park use. This
loan is to be paid back through the sale of City owned property held in the Lands and Building Fund, of which
$870,000 was paid back during FY’08 after a property sale. The Transportation Capital Projects Fund, by policy,
receives 5% of State Gas Tax revenues for the dedicated purpose of Bike Paths. Gas Tax revenues received from
the state in August represents the distribution for June. As such the dedicated 5% was journalized as due the
Transportation Fund. The Bancroft Bond Fund has made internal borrowings totaling $1,540,000 from the Solid
Waste Capital Projects Fund for local improvement projects. The variation in the individual project costs subject
to bonding together with timing elements made internal borrowing more cost effective then public financing.
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Transfers In Transfers Out

General Fund $ 931,829 1,095,407
Solid Waste Fund 38,000 58,000
Bancroft Bond Fund - 11,503
Transportation Capital Projects 874,233 -
Lands & Buildings Capital Projects 866,873 50,000
Water Fund 1,284,000 1,416,000
Sewer Fund 3,139,800 2,669,800
Redwood Sanitary Sewer Fund
Nonmajor governmental Funds 50,000 1,915,025
Internal Service Funds 81,000 50,000

Total Funds $ 7,265,735 $ 7,265,735

The allocation of Transient Room Tax receipts, a special revenue fund, to general governmental operating
activities accounts for the monies transferred into the General Fund. The largest segments of General Fund
transfers out represent funding of $653,373 appropriated for Lands & Building Capital Projects and $295,634
appropriated for Transportation Projects. Transportation Projects also received $289,653 from Street Utility fees,
$68,096 from the State Gas Tax Fund, and $66,000 from the Water Fund. In addition to the transfer indicated
above from the General Fund, Lands & Building Capital Projects received $158,500 from Transient Room Tax
and $50,000 from the Support Services Fund, all appropriated as resources to a variety of projects, everything
from property improvements to business incentive programs. Equipment Replacement, an Internal Service Fund,
received $50,000 from Public Safety, $20,000 from Sewer Treatment, and $11,000 from Water Treatment of the
acquisition of equipment.

7. LONG-TERM DEBT

Bonds outstanding consist of Public Safety General Obligation Bonds, Water Revenue Bonds, Urban Renewal
Refunding Bonds, and General Obligation Bonds. The Public Safety Bonds were issued June 20, 2007, at the
original amount of $9,820,000. The Water Revenue bonds were issued August 1, 1998 at the original amount of
$4,080,000, payable from the net revenues of the water system. The Urban Renewal Refunding Bonds were
issued by the Parkway Redevelopment Agency in November 2001 at an original amount of $2,735,000, and are
payable from Parkway Redevelopment Fund tax increment revenues. Future maturities of bond principal and
interest at June 30, 2008, are as follows:

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
YEAR PRINCIPAL INTEREST PRINCIPAL INTEREST
2008-2009 $ 1,155,000 $ 398,375 340,000 84,082
2009-2010 560,000 359,000 355,000 69,122
2010-2011 630,000 336,600 375,000 53,325
2011-2012 685,000 311,400 395,000 36,450
2012-2013 740,000 284,000 415,000 18,675
2013-2018 4,700,000 896,700 - -
2018-2022 1,175,000 47,000 - -
Less: Discount (12,198)
$ 9,645,000 $ 2,633,075 $ 1,867,802 $ 261,654
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Purpose Interest Rates Amount
Governmental General Obligation Bonds 3.9-5% 9,645,000
Business-Type Revenue Bonds 3.9-4.5% 1,880,000

Unbonded Long-Term Debt

Contracts payable in the Governmental and Business-Type funds consist of installment contracts related to
property purchased by the City. The contracts mature at various dates through 2029. Notes payable in the
Business-Type funds consist of two loans from the Oregon State Revolving Loan Program, a loan from the
Department of Environmental Quality dated June 26, 2001 and an Intergovernmental note payable to Josephine

County.

Notes and contracts payable consist of the following:

Purpose Interest Rates Amount
Governmental Contracts Payable 4.99-6% $ 331,063
Governmental Loans Payable 3.9% 601,705
Business Type Notes Payable 3.98% 3,595,824
Business Type Notes Payable 3.43% 6,200,694
Business Type Notes Payable 0% 20,000
Business Type Notes Payable 3% 38,900
$ 10,788,186

Future maturities of principal and interest on notes and contracts payable are as follows:

NOTES & CONTRACTS PAYABLE

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
YEAR PRINCIPAL INTEREST YEAR PRINCIPAL INTEREST

2008-2009 $ 122,997 $ 37,568 2008-2009 $ 595,147 $ 350319
2009-2010 128,271 32,387 2009-2010 617,473 327,993
2010-2011 133,559 27,090 2010-2011 640,642 304,824
2011-2012 138,861 21,584 2011-2012 664,684 280,782
2012-2013 144,178 15,867 2012-2013 689,633 255,833
2013-2018 137,943 40,175 2013-2018 3,725,275 870,678
2018-2023 49,415 26,984 2018-2023 2,184,443 330,697
2023-2028 63,036 13,363 2023-2028 738,121 24,772
2028-2033 14,508 724 2028-2033 - -

$ 932,768 $ 215742 $ 9,855,418 $ 2,745,898
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Long-Term Debt activity for the year ended June 30, 2008, is as follows:

CHANGES IN LONG-TERM DEBT

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year

Governmental Activities:

General Obligation Bonds Payable $ 10,705,000 § - $ 1,060,000 $ 9,645,000 $§ 1,155,000

Post-Closure Care Costs 1,446,301 1,115,374 - 2,561,675 120,962

Notes and Contracts Payable 1,223,799 - 291,031 932,768 100,496
Governmental activities

Long-Term Debt $ 13375100 $ 1,115374 § 1351031 § 13,139,443 § 1376458
Business-type Activities:

Revenue Bonds Payable $ 2,200,000 § - $ 320,000 § 1,880,000 $ 340,000

Less Unamortized Discount (14,637) - (2,439) (12,198) -

Notes and Contracts Payable 10,428,215 - 571,697 9,856,518 595,147
Business-type Activities

Long-Term Debt $ 12,613,578 § - $ 889,258 § 11724320 § 935,147

8. RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets, errors
and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The City purchases commercial insurance for
general, auto and property liability. Settled claims have not exceeded this commercial coverage in any of the past
three fiscal years. The Insurance Services Fund is responsible for collecting interfund premiums from other City
funds and departments, paying claim settlements and purchasing other specified insurance policies. Interfund
premiums are based on the insured funds’ claims experiences and exposure (number of staff/payroll).

The City is self-insured for workers’ compensation claims. The activities of the workers’ compensation program
are accounted for in the Insurance Services Fund. The City carries stop-loss coverage for amounts over
$400,000, to a maximum of $1,000,000. The City estimates losses based on actual claims and accident history.
The claims liability of $116,841 reported in the Insurance Services Fund at June 30, 2008 is based on the
requirements of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 10, which requires that a liability for
claims be reported if information prior to the issuance of the financial statements indicates that it is probable that
a liability has been incurred at the date of the financial statements and the amount of that loss can be reasonably
estimated. The $116,844 is considered to be due within the next year and is classified as such on the Statement
of Net Assets.

Ending Beginning of Changes in Payments at End

June 30, Year Estimates of Claims of Year
2005 120,959 (55,709) 32,004 33,246
2006 33,246 79,509 56,040 56,715
2007 56,715 118,173 58,047 116,841
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Plan Description — Substantially all City employees are participants in the State of Oregon Public Employees
Retirement System (OPERS), an agent multiple-employer public employee retirement system that acts as a
common investment and administrative agent for government units in the State of Oregon. Benefits generally
vest after five years of continuous service. Retirement is allowed at age 58 with unreduced benefits, but
retirement is generally available after age 55 with reduced benefits. Compulsory retirement age is 70.
Retirement benefits are payable in lump sum or monthly amounts using several payment options. OPERS also
provides death and disability benefits. These benefit provisions and other requirements are established by
Oregon Revised Statutes, Chapter 238. OPERS issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report
that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. The stand-alone report may be
obtained by writing to Oregon Public Employees Retirement System, P.O. Box 23700, Tigard, Oregon 97281-
3700.

Funding Policy — Plan members are required to contribute 6% of their annual covered salary. The City is
required by ORS 238.225 to contribute at an actuarially determined rate; the rate effective July 1, 2007 is 16.05%
of salary covered under the plan for Tier 1 and Tier 2 employees and 10.84% for employees covered under the
Oregon Public Services Retirement Plan (OPSRP).. The contribution requirement of plan members and their
employers are established under ORS Chapter 238, and may be amended by an act of the Oregon legislature.

Annual Pension Cost — For the fiscal years ending June 30, 2008, 2007, and 2006, the City’s annual pension cost
of $1,541,448, $1,522,986 and $1,066,843, respectively, was equal to the City’s required and actual
contributions. The required contributions and liabilities were determined as part of the December 31, 2003
actuarial valuation using the entry age actuarial cost method. Because all OPERS employers are required by law
to submit the contributions adopted by the Retirement Board, and the employer contributions are calculated in
conformance with the standards of Statement No. 27, there is no net pension obligation. The contributions
actually made are equivalent to the annual pension cost. Significant actuarial assumptions used in the valuation
include (a) a rate of return of 8.0% per year, net of investment and administrative expenses (assumed earnings
rate for purposes of Tier One guaranteed interest credit); (b) wage growth of 4.25% per year, excluding merit or
longevity increases; (c) projected post-retirement benefit increases of 2.0% per year; (d) demographic
assumptions that have been chosen to reflect the best estimate of emerging experience of the members of
OPERS; (e) consumer price inflation of 3.5% per year; and (f) future interest credits of 8.5% for Tier One and
8.0% for Tier Two. Unfunded actuarial liability is amortized as a level percentage of covered payroll over a
thirty-year period on an open basis.

GASB Statement No. 27 disclosures are based on the actuarial assumptions and methods contained in the
December 31, 2005 Actuarial Valuation of the PERS plan. The Actuarial Value of Assets is equal to Market
Value. Liabilities and contributions are calculated using the Entry Age Actuarial Cost Method. The Unfunded
Actuarial Liability is amortized as a level percentage of covered payroll over an open thirty year period.

Schedule of Funding Progress

Valuation Funded Covered UAAL/
Date AVA AAL UAAL Percent Payroll Payroll
12/312001 45,596,379 41,853,504 (3,742,875) 109% 7,289,100 -51%
12/31/2003 36,466,351 43,526,425 (7,060,074) 84% 8,157,797 87%
12/31/2005 44,007,862 50,076,056 (6,068,194) 88% 9,637,834 63%
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10. DEFERRED COMPENSATION

The City offers its employees optional deferred compensation plans created in accordance with Internal Revenue
Code Section 457. The plans, available to all City employees, permit them to defer a portion of their salary until
future years. The deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement, death or an
unforeseeable emergency. All amounts of compensation deferred under the plans, all property and rights
purchased with those amounts, and all income attributable to those amounts, property or rights are (until paid or
made available to the employee or other beneficiary) held in trust for the exclusive benefit of participants and
their beneficiaries. Monies accumulated by the City under its deferred compensation plans have been deposited
with various financial institutions. The City has adopted GASB Statement 32, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans. The City has little
administrative involvement and does not perform the investing functions for this plan, therefore, this plan is not
shown in the City’s financial statements.

11. OTHER POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS

The City provides postretirement health care benefits, as per labor contracts and the Personnel Rules and
Regulations, for retirees. The benefit varies depending upon date of employment. The City pays 100 percent of
the medical insurance premium for four years following the retirement of an employee, or until the employee
dies, reaches age 65, or enters employment where insurance is provided. The employee must be eligible and
receiving Oregon Public Employees Retirement Systems (OPERS) benefits. Employees hired after January 1,
2001 and covered under the Grants Pass Police Association labor contract and the Teamsters Local Union #223
are eligible for 50% City paid medical insurance benefits for only six months following retirement. Likewise
members of the International Association of Firefighters, Local 3564 hired after October 5, 2002 have the same
reduced benefit. Under Oregon law, retirees retain the right to continue their health insurance benefits under the
City’s group plan, with no distinction made for costs or services available. Thus once the City’s financial
obligation ends, a retiree may elect to continue the group benefit coverage at his own expense. Expenditures for
premiums paid on this plan totaled $90,048 in 2008. As of year end, there were five retired employees receiving
this benefit. The average remaining obligation by the City per retiree was thirty months. The City finances these
expenses as they are incurred in the respective fund where the retiree had worked.

12. FUND BALANCE DEFICITS AND OVEREXPENDITURES

The Bancroft Bond Fund has a deficit fund balance of $1,386,260. The City anticipates that the deficit balances
will be liquidated by transfers from other funds and future revenues.

13. LANDFILL/CLOSURE AND POSTCLOSURE CARE COSTS

The Merlin Landfill is a municipal solid waste landfill regulated by Federal regulations, 40 CFR 258, Subpart F
and the State of Oregon statutes contained in ORS 340-094. The Landfill is maintained under the specific terms
of an Oregon Solid Waste Disposal Site Closure Permit No. 159, with an expiration date of April 30, 2008. In
July 2001, the City purchased insurance for closure and post-closure costs. State laws and regulations required
the City to place a final cover on its Merlin landfill site after it stopped accepting trash in December 2000. This
cap was completed during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002. The Remedial Investigation and Risk Assessment
reports have been completed and approved by the Oregon Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ). The
City received a Record of Decision (ROD) from the DEQ on January 3, 2006 that guides the City in the remedial
actions necessary to mitigate the risk due to the groundwater contamination. The current value of post closure
care costs is $2,561,675. This is an estimate and subject to changes resulting from inflation, deflation,
technology, or changes in applicable laws or regulations.
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14. PROPERTY TAX LIMITATIONS

The State of Oregon has a constitutional limit on property taxes for schools and nonschool government
operations. The limitation provides that property taxes for nonschool operations are limited to $10.00 for each
$1,000 of property market value. This limitation does not apply to taxes levied for principal and interest on
general obligation bonded debt.

An additional limit reduces the amount of operating property tax revenues available to the City. This reduction
was accomplished by rolling property values for 1997-98 back to their 1995-96 values less 10% and limiting
future tax value growth of each property to no more than 3% per year, subject to certain exceptions. Taxes levied
to support bonded debt are exempted from the reductions. The Constitution also sets restrictive voter approval
requirements for most tax and many fee increases and new bond issues.

15. CONSTRUCTION AND OTHER SIGNIFICANT COMMITMENTS

At June 30, 2008, the City had entered into several capital construction projects with various vendors. The
outstanding commitments for these projects at June 30, 2008 are $ 2,221,535.

At June 30, 2008 there was $3,706,534 of unspent bond proceeds in the Land and Buildings Project Fund for the
two new Public Safety Stations. This amount affects the Net Asset calculation on the Statement of Net Assets,
because this cash is restricted for capital purposes.

16. COMPENSATED ABSENCES

Changes in governmental compensated absences are as follows:

Amount Due
June 30, 2007 Additions Deletions  June 30, 2008  within one year

Vacation and Sick
Leave Payable $ 1,263,883 § 119,666 $39,188 $ 1,344,361 $ 300,000

17. PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

There was an adjustment made to the Harbeck Fruitdale Fund, this was made to correct a long term liability
amount that was off by $2,000 last year.

18. FUTURE PRONOUNCEMENTS

Next year the City will adopt GASB 45 which will have a significant impact on the Net Assets of the City.
GASB 45, “Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other than
Pensions”, provides guidance on all aspects of OPEB reporting for employers.
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ACTUAL AND BUDGET - BUDGETARY BASIS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

GENERAL FUND
VARIANCE
TO FINAL
BUDGET
ORIGINAL FINAL POSITIVE
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
REVENUES:
Taxes $ 15148833  § 15,056,870 $ 15,234,283 177413
Licenses and Permits 713,450 714,300 471,840 (242,460)
Intergovernmental 1,534,484 1,720,984 1,686,720 (34,264)
Charges for Services 949,134 1,012,543 848,070 (164,473)
Fines and Forfeitures 216,500 265,000 253,766 (11,234)
Interest on Investments 357,000 386,800 352,602 (34,198)
Miscellaneous 743,350 251,561 1,024,976 773,415
Total Revenues 19,662,751 19,408,058 19,872,257 464,199
EXPENDITURES:
Mayor and Council 147,996 159,071 (1) 139,676 19,395
Public Safety Field Services 8,942,457 9,101,708 (1) 9,030,743 70,965
Public Safety Support Services 3,255,359 3,202,059 (1) 3,094,238 107,821
Crisis Support Services 35,000 38,500 (1) 38,500 -
Street Lighting 242,000 252,000 (1) 250,985 1,015
Code Enforcement 214,427 199,226 (1) 181,784 17,442
Park Maintenance Services 1,363,589 1,363,589 (1) 1,310,976 52,613
Aquatic Services 126,215 126,215 (1) 72,678 53,537
Recreation Services 144,658 144,681 (1) 129,237 15,444
Planning Services 1,075,035 1,075,035 (1) 820,106 254,929
Building and Safety Services 1,397,352 1,271,670 (1) 961,444 310,226
Economic Development 166,867 156,570 (1) 134,891 21,679
Downtown Development 290,212 287,997 (1) 287,483 514
Tourism Promotion 325,312 325,312 (1) 317,745 7,567
General Program Operations (954,100) 100,850 (1) 16,424 84,426
Debt Service 1,070,231 1,074,709 (1) 1,020,445 54,264
Contingency 1,050,000 625,682 (1) - 625,682
Total Expenditures 18,892,610 19,504,874 17,807,355 1,697,519
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 770,141 (96,816) 2,064,902 2,161,718
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In 961,082 933,897 931,829 (2,068)
Sale of Assets 2,000 2,000 - (2,000)
Interfund Loans - - 870,000 870,000
Transfers Out (1,096,400) (1,096,400) (1) (1,095,407) 993
Total other financing uses (133,318) (160,503) 706,422 866,925
Net Change in Fund Balance 636,823 (257,319) 2,771,324 3,028,643
Beginning Fund Balance 5,005,108 5,581,605 3,081,605 (2,500,000)
Ending Fund Balance $ 5,641,931  § 5,324,286 $ 5,852,929 528,643
Reconciliation to GAAP Fund Balance
Interfund Loans 1,630,000
Total GAAP Fund Balance $ 7,482,929

(1) Appropriation Level
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ACTUAL AND BUDGET- BUDGETARY BASIS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

REVENUES:

Licenses and Permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for Services
Interest on Investments
Miscellaneous Revenue

Total Revenues
EXPENDITURES:
Environmental Waste Fees
Field Operations
Post-closure
General Program Operations
Capital Outlay
Debt Service
Contingency
Total Expenditures
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In
Loan Proceeds
Transfers Out
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balance
Beginning Fund Balance

Ending Fund Balance

(1) Appropriation Level

SOLID WASTE FUND

VARIANCE

TO FINAL

BUDGET

ORIGINAL FINAL POSITIVE
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
2,000 $ 2,000 $ 3,00 $ 1,070
141,831 342,929 295,276 (47,653)
410,750 549,664 312,005 (237,659)
160,000 165,500 150,985 (14,515)
177,500 12,000 12,077 77
892,081 1,072,093 773,413 (298,680)
288,750 427,785 (1) 228,398 199,387
31,982 31,932 (1) 19,003 12,929
122,000 111,831 (1) 90,595 21,236
7213 17,382 (1) 31,435 (14,053)
2,814,211 3,398,961 (1) 58,983 3,339,978
141,831 295,168 (1) 294,420 748
12,805 12,805 (1) - 12,805
3,418,792 4,295,864 722,834 3,573,030
(2,526,711) (3,223,771) 50,579 3,274,350
38,000 38,000 38,000 -
(58,000) (58,000) (58,000) -
(20,000) (20,000) (20,000) -
(2,546,711) (3,243,771) 30,579 3,274,350
2,824,696 3,329,906 3,329,906 -
277,985 § 86,135 $ 3,360,485 $ 3,274,350
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CITY OF GRANTS PASS
JOSEPHINE COUNTY, OREGON
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

The budgetary basis for required supplementary information is the same as GAAP, except for interfund loans which
are accounted for as "other financing sources” for budgetary purposes and is considered loans for GAAP.
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CITY OF GRANTS PASS
JOSEPHINE COUNTY, OREGON
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
ACTUAL AND BUDGET- BUDGETARY BASIS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

BANCROFT BOND
VARIANCE
TO FINAL
BUDGET
ORIGINAL FINAL POSITIVE
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
REVENUES:
Special Assessments $ 593,000 § 164,000  $ 202,536 38,536
Interest on Assessments - 4,250 4,634 384
Total Revenues 593,000 168,250 207,170 38,920
EXPENDITURES:
Materials and Services 93,875 84,000 (1) 81,301 2,699
Debt Service 499,125 110,000 (1) - 110,000
Contingency - 974 (1) - 974
Total Expenditures 593,000 194,974 81,301 113,673
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures - (26,724) 125,869 152,593
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Bond Proceeds 1,724,000 4,258,850 - (4,258,850)
Transfers Out (1,724,000) (1,296,500) (1) (11,503) 1,284,997
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) - 2,962,350 (11,503) (2,973,853)
Net Change in Fund Balance - 2,935,626 114,366 (2,821,260)
Beginning Fund Balance - (2,935,626) 39,374 2,975,000
Ending Fund Balance $ -3 - $ 153,740 153,740
Reconciliation to GAAP Equity
Interfund Loan $ (1,540,000)
GAAP Equity $ (1,386,260)

(1) Appropriation Level
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CITY OF GRANTS PASS
JOSEPHINE COUNTY, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
ACTUAL AND BUDGET- BUDGETARY BASIS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

TRANSPORTATION PROJECTS FUND

VARIANCE
TO FINAL
BUDGET
ORIGINAL FINAL POSITIVE
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental $ 1,466,756 2,048,000 § 1,362,793 § (685,207)
Charges for Services 2,375,000 1,320,000 979,353 (340,647)
Interest on Investments 98,700 111,138 327,314 216,176
Trust Receipts - - 44,571 44,571
Contributions 105,000 15,000 260 (14,740)
Miscellaneous Revenues 100,000 - - -
Total Revenues 4,145 456 3,494,138 2,714,291 (779,847)
EXPENDITURES:
Contingency - - - -
Capital Outlay 10,859,819 13275217 (1) 5,266,007 8,009,210
Total Expenditures 10,859,819 13,275,217 5,266,007 8,009,210
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (6,714,363) (9,781,079) (2,551,716) 7,229,363
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In 2,612,000 2,163,500 874,233 (1,289,267)
Transfers Out - - - -
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 2,612,000 2,163,500 874,233 (1,289,267)
Net Change in Fund Balance (4,102,363) (7,617,579) (1,677,483) 5,940,096
Beginning Fund Balance 4,102,363 7,617,579 7,617,579 -
Ending Fund Balance $ - - § 5,940,096 $ 5,940,096

(1) Appropriation Level
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CITY OF GRANTS PASS
JOSEPHINE COUNTY, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
ACTUAL AND BUDGET- BUDGETARY BASIS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

REVENUES:
Intergovernmental
Charges for Services
Interest on Investments
Contributions
Miscellaneous
Total Revenues
EXPENDITURES:
Capital Outlay
Total expenditures
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Loan Proceeds
Transfers In
Sale of Assets
Transfers Out
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balance
Beginning Fund Balance

Ending Fund Balance

Reconciliation to GAAP Fund Balance
Interfund Loans

Total GAAP Fund Balance

(1) Appropriation Level

LAND AND BUILDING PROJECTS FUND
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VARIANCE
TO FINAL
BUDGET
ORIGINAL FINAL POSITIVE
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
$ 630,000 437,951 437,951 % -
670,000 506,000 503,513 (2,487)
14,000 160,000 511,262 351,262
250,000 200,000 4,600 (195,400)
11,000 5,500 5,419 (81)
1,625,000 1,309,451 1,462,745 153,294
14,611,643 15,840,896 (1) 7,179,407 8,661,489
14,611,643 15,840,896 7,179,407 8,661,489
(12,986,643) (14,531,445) (5,716,662) 8,814,783
818,695 877,564 866,873 (10,691)
2,840,000 1,793,942 878,942 (915,000)
(50,000) (50,000) (1) (50,000) §
3,608,695 2,621,506 1,695,815 (925,691)
(9,377,948) (11,909,939) (4,020,847) 7,889,092
9,377,948 11,909,939 11,909,939 -
$ - - 7889092 § 7,889,092
(1,630,000)
6,259,092



CITY OF GRANTS PASS
JOSEPHINE COUNTY, OREGON
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
ACTUAL AND BUDGET- BUDGETARY BASIS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

PARKWAY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

VARIANCE
TO FINAL
BUDGET
ORIGINAL FINAL POSITIVE
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
REVENUES:
Taxes $ 1,794105  § 1,794,105 § 1,885,277 91,172
Intergovernmental - 500,000 - (500,000)
Interest on Investments 234,750 242750 216,507 (26,243)
Trust Receipts 15,050 46,050 189,066 143,016
Miscellaneous 500,000 - 831 831
Total revenues 2,543,905 2,582,905 2,291,681 (291,224)
EXPENDITURES:
Materials and Services 138,550 81,350 (1) 83,217 (1,867)
Capital Outlay 641,726 1,725,685 (1) 1,725,478 207
Debt Service
Principal 435,236 435,236 (1) 435,235 1
Interest 45,545 45,545 (1) 43,545 2,000
Contingency 134,768 63,605 (1) - 63,605
Total Expenditures 1,395,825 2,351,421 2,287,475 63,946
Net Change in Fund Balance 1,148,080 231,484 4,206 (227,278)
Beginning Fund Balance 3,027,245 3,707,773 3,707,773 -
Ending Fund Balance $ 4,175325  § 3,939,257 $ 3,711,979 (227,278)

(1) Appropriation Level
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CITY OF GRANTS PASS
JOSEPHINE COUNTY, OREGON
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2008
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
TRANSIENT COMMUNITY
ROOM STREET DEVELOPMENT
TAX UTILITY BLOCK GRANT
FUND FUND FUND
ASSETS:
Cash and Investments 3 - $ 69,133 $ 859,416
Receivables
Intergovernmental - 108,316 -
Accounts, net - 96,397 -
Notes - - 203,480
Grants - -
Accrued Interest - - 2,157
Total Assets $ - $ 273,846 3 1,065,053
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES:
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 3 - $ 62,706 $ -
Salaries, withholdings and taxes payable - 12,492 -
Due To Other Funds - - -
Deferred Revenue - 203,480
Total Liabilities - 75,198 203,480
Fund Balances:
Unreserved - 198,648 861,573
Total fund balances - 198,648 861,573
Total liabilities and fund balances $ - 3 273,846 3 1,065,053
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

HOUSING STORM
& ECONOMIC WATER &
DEVELOPMENT  OPEN SPACE
FUND FUND TOTAL
$ 976,559 $ 347373 $ 2252481
. - 108,316
528 - 96,925
6,810 36,981 247271
609 2,139 4,905
$ 984506 $ 386,493 $ 2,709,898
$ -8 -3 62,706
- ; 12,492
- 55,000 55,000
6,810 36,981 247271
6,810 91,981 377,469
977,696 294,512 2,332,429
977,696 294,512 2,332,429
$ 984506 $ 386493  $ 2,709,898
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CITY OF GRANTS PASS
JOSEPHINE COUNTY, OREGON
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
TRANSIENT COMMUNITY
ROOM STREET DEVELOPMENT
TAX UTILITY BLOCK GRANT
FUND FUND FUND
REVENUES:
Taxes $ 1,024431 § - $ -
Licenses and Permits - 17,465 -
Intergovernmental - 1,442,289 -
Charges for Services - 766,152 -
Interest on Investments - 11,555 38,904
Industrial and Other Loans - - 4317
Miscellaneous Revenues - 6,306 -
Total Revenues 1,024,431 2,243,767 43221
EXPENDITURES:
Development 15,370 - 9,466
Field Operations - 1,428,568 -
Debt Service - . .
Capital Outlay - - -
Total Expenditures 15,370 1,428,568 9,466
Excess of Revenues Over,
(Under) Expenditures 1,009,061 815,199 33,755
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In - - -
Sale of Assets -
Transfers Out (1,018,931) (831,096) -
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (1,018,931) (831,096) -
Net Change in Fund Balance (9,870) (15,897) 33,755
Beginning Fund Balance 9,870 214,545 827,818
Ending Fund Balance $ - 3 198,648 $ 861,573
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

HOUSING STORM
& ECONOMIC WATER &
DEVELOPMENT OPEN SPACE
FUND FUND TOTAL
$ - % - 1,024,431
. - 17,465
- - 1,442,289
. 96,722 862,874
42,980 20,173 113,612
2,834 - 7,151
- - 6,306
45,814 116,895 3,474,128
- - 24,836
- 101,130 1,529,698
- 2,464 2,464
- 117,883 117,883
- 221,477 1,674,881
45,814 (104,582) 1,799,247
- 50,000 50,000
(5,000) (60,000) (1,915,027)
(5,000) (10,000) (1,865,027)
40,814 (114,582) (65,780)
936,882 409,094 2,398,209
$ 977,696  $ 294,512 2,332,429
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CITY OF GRANTS PASS
JOSEPHINE COUNTY, OREGON
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
ACTUAL AND BUDGET- BUDGETARY BASIS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

TRANSIENT ROOM TAX FUND
VARIANCE
TO FINAL
BUDGET
ORIGINAL FINAL POSITIVE
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
REVENUES:
Taxes $ 1,068,177  $ 1,036,560 $ 1,024 431 (12,129)
Total Revenues 1,068,177 1,036,560 1,024,431 (12,129)
EXPENDITURES:
Materials and Services 14,800 15,370 (1) 15,370 -
Total Expenditures 14,800 15,370 15,370 -
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 1,053,377 1,021,190 1,009,061 (12,129)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers Out (1,053,377) (1,031,060) (1,018,931) 12,129
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (1,053,377) (1,031,060} (1,018,931) 12,129
Net Change in Fund Balance - (9,870) (9,870) -
Beginning Fund Balance - 9,870 9,870 -
Ending Fund Balance $ - $ - $ - -

(1) Appropriation Level
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CITY OF GRANTS PASS
JOSEPHINE COUNTY, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

ACTUAL AND BUDGET- BUDGETARY BASIS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

REVENUES:
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Interest on investments
Trust Receipts
Miscellaneous
Total Revenues
EXPENDITURES:
Street and drainage services
Support services
General operations
Contingency
Total Expenditures
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Sale of Assest
Transfers Out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balance
Beginning Fund Balance
Ending Fund Balance

(1) Appropriation Level

STREET UTILITY FUND

VARIANCE

TO FINAL

BUDGET

ORIGINAL FINAL POSITIVE
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
40,000 % 19,250 17465 § (1,785)
1,440,000 1,383,230 1,442,289 59,059
775,900 759,450 766,152 6,702
5,000 7,500 11,555 4,055
53,000 5,000 6,306 1,306
2,313,900 2,174,430 2,243,767 69,337
982,746 978,042 (1) 954,132 23,910
65,565 65,565 (1) 58,335 7,230
430,589 420,149 (1) 416,101 4,048
- 640 (1) - 640
1,478,900 1,464,396 1,428,568 35,828
835,000 710,034 815,199 105,165
(835,000) (835,000) (1) (831,096) 3,904
(835,000) (835,000) (831,096) 3,904
- (124,966) (15,897) 109,069

- 214,545 214,545 -
- $ 89,579 198,648  § 109,069

- 65 -



CITY OF GRANTS PASS
JOSEPHINE COUNTY, OREGON
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
ACTUAL AND BUDGET- BUDGETARY BASIS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT FUND

VARIANCE
TO FINAL
BUDGET
ORIGINAL FINAL POSITIVE
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental $ 800,000 $ - $ - 3 -
Charges for Services 200 - - -
Interest on Investments 30,900 39,385 38,904 (481)
Loan Repayments 13,808 13,408 4,317 (9,091)
Contributions - - - -
Total Revenues 844,908 52,793 43,221 (9,572)
EXPENDITURES:
Materials and Services 108,150 25,500 (1) 9,466 16,034
Capital Outlay 800,000 - - -
Contingencies 250,000 75,000 (1) - 75,000
Total Expenditures 1,158,150 100,500 9,466 91,034
Net Change in Fund Balance (313,242) (47,707) 33,755 81,462
Beginning Fund Balance 630,314 827,818 827,818 ~
Ending Fund Balance $ 317,072 § 780,111 $ 861,573  $ 81,462

(1) Appropriation Level
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CITY OF GRANTS PASS
JOSEPHINE COUNTY, OREGON
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
ACTUAL AND BUDGET- BUDGETARY BASIS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

HOUSING AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUND

VARIANCE
TO FINAL
BUDGET
ORIGINAL FINAL POSITIVE
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
REVENUES:
Charges for Services $ - $ - $ -8 -
Interest on Investments 45,450 45,450 42,980 (2,470)
Industrial and Other Loan Payments 13,100 13,100 2,834 (10,266)
Miscellaneous Revenues 150 150 - (150)
Total Revenues 58,700 58,700 45814 (12,886)
EXPENDITURES:
Materials and Services 200,000 60,000 (1) - 60,000
Contingencies 100,000 20,000 (1) - 20,000
Total Expenditures 300,000 80,000 - 80,000
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (241,300) (21,300) 45814 67,114
OTHER FINANCING USES:
Transfers Out (5,000) (5,000) (1) (5,000) -
Total Other Financing Uses (5,000) (5,000) (5,000) -
Net Change in Fund Balance (246,300) (26,300) 40,814 67,114
Beginning Fund Balance 708,933 936,882 936,882 -
Ending Fund Balance $ 462,633  $ 910,582 $ 977,696 $ 67,114

(1) Appropriation Level
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CITY OF GRANTS PASS
JOSEPHINE COUNTY, OREGON
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
ACTUAL AND BUDGET- BUDGETARY BASIS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

STORM WATER AND OPEN SPACE

VARIANCE
TO FINAL
BUDGET
ORIGINAL FINAL POSITIVE
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
REVENUES:
Charges for Services 500,000 g 103,000 § 96,722 (6,278)
Interest on Investments 20,000 4,500 20,173
Miscellaneous - - - -
Total Revenues 520,000 107,500 116,895 9,395
EXPENDITURES:
Stormwater Maintenance 76,870 31,629 18,329 13,300
Customer Services 76,572 39,760 39,760 -
General Program Operations 33,201 40,567 43,041 (2,474)
Capital Outlay 425,000 486,479 117,883 368,596
Debt Service 57,300 2,600 2,464 136
Contingency 50,000 - - -
Total Expenditures 718,943 601,035 221,477 379,558
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (198,943) (493 ,535) (104,582) 388,953
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In - 50,000 50,000 -
Loan Proceeds - 91,605 - (91,605)
Transfers Out (35,000) (60,000) (1) (60,000) -
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (35,000) 81,605 (10,000) (91,605)
Net Change in Fund Balance (233,943) (411,930) (114,582) 297,348
Beginning Fund Balance 395,948 464,094 464,094 -
Ending Fund Balance 162,005 § 52,164  $ 349,512 297,348
Reconciliation to GAAP Equity
Interfund Loans $ (55,000)
GAAP Equity $ 294,512

(1) Appropriation Level
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CITY OF GRANTS PASS
JOSEPHINE COUNTY, OREGON
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
ACTUAL AND BUDGET - BUDGETARY BASIS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

WATER FUND
VARIANCE
TO FINAL
BUDGET
ORIGINAL FINAL POSITIVE
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
REVENUES:
Taxes $ - 8 - 8 - 8 -
Intergovernmental - - - -
Charges for Services 4,941,775 4,862,490 4,530,696 (331,794)
Interest on Investments 82,000 158,500 181,254 22,754
Trust Receipts 90,000 90,000 64,828 (25,172)
Miscellaneous Revenues 57,300 123,305 240,740 117,435
Total Revenues 5,171,075 5,234,295 5,017,518 (216,777)
EXPENDITURES:
Treatment Services 1,252,530 1,252,530 (1) 1,192,168 60,362
Distribution Services 977,156 965,156 (1) 983,428 (18,272)
Customer Services 430,555 431,155 (1) 392,512 38,643
General Operations 337,440 337,440 (1) 301,589 35,851
Debt Service
Principal 320,000 320,000 (1) 320,000 -
Interest 98,163 98,163 (1) 96,989 1,174
Capital Outlay 2,380,500 1,047,715 (1) 590,814 456,901
Contingency 200,000 200,000 (1) - 200,000
Total Expenditures 5,996,344 4,652,159 3,877,500 774,659
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (825,269) 582,136 1,140,018 557,882
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Sale of Assets - - - -
Transfers In 1,322,000 1,284,000 1,284,000 -
Transfers Out (1,405,000) (1,416,000) (1) (1,416,000) -
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (83,000) (132,000) (132,000) -
Net Change in Fund Balance (908,269) 450,136 1,008,018 557,882
Beginning Fund Balance 2,861,565 3,526,964 3,526,964 -
Ending Fund Balance $ 1,953,296 § 3,977,100 § 4,534982 § 557,882
Reconciliation to Net Assets
Fixed Assets, net 50,274,438
General Obligation Bonds Payable (1,867,863)
Deferred Revenue 147,531
Total Net Assets $ 53,089,088

(1) Appropriation Level
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CITY OF GRANTS PASS
JOSEPHINE COUNTY, OREGON
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
ACTUAL AND BUDGET - BUDGETARY BASIS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

SEWER FUND
VARIANCE
TO FINAL
BUDGET
ORIGINAL FINAL POSITIVE
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental $ 238,000 $ 238,000 $ 245,708 $ 7,708
Charges for Services 4,970,000 4,970,000 4,998,610 28,610
Interest on Investments 103,000 103,000 92,965 (10,035)
Trust Receipts 5,000 5,000 3,140 (1,860)
Miscellaneous 328,625 328,625 64,054 (264,571)
Total Revenues 5,644,625 5,644,625 5,404,477 (240,148)
EXPENDITURES:
Treatment Services 1,393,242 1,393,242 (1) 1,356,660 36,582
Jo-Gro 482,698 504,967 (1) 494,694 10,273
Collection Services 521,719 521,719 (1) 533,111 (11,392)
Customer Services 237,869 257,869 (1) 261,379 (3,510)
General Operations 375,798 375,798 (1) 348,983 26,815
Debt service:
Principal 275,460 275,460 (1) 275,460 -
Interest 219,790 219,790 (1) 216,641 3,149
Capital Outlay 6,271,324 5,712,751 (1) 5,417,419 295,332
Contingency 250,000 230,000 (1) - 230,000
Total Expenditures 10,027,900 9,491,596 8,904,347 587,249
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (4,383,275) (3,846,971) (3,499,870) 347,101
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers In 3,103,000 3,143,462 3,139,800 (3,662)
Transfers Out (2,653,000) (2,673,462) (1) (2,669,800) 3,662
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 450,000 470,000 470,000 -
Net Change in Fund Balance (3,933,275) (3,376,971) (3,029,870) 347,101
Beginning Fund Balance 4,822,174 5,640,934 5,640,934 -
Ending Fund Balance $ 888,899 % 2263963 § 2,611,064 $ 347,101
Reconciliation to Net Assets
Fixed Assets, net 34,514,260
Deferred Revenue 147,611
Notes Payable (6,200,694)
Total Net Assets $ 31,072,241

(1) Appropriation Level
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CITY OF GRANTS PASS
JOSEPHINE COUNTY, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
ACTUAL AND BUDGET - BUDGETARY BASIS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

REVENUES:
Special Assessments
Interest
Miscellaneous
Total Revenues
EXPENDITURES:
General program operations
Debt Service
Contingency
Total Expenditures
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Transfers In
Transfers Out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balance
Beginning Fund Balance
Ending Fund Balance
Reconciliation to Net Assets
Fixed Assets, net
Deferred Revenue

Notes Payable

Net Assets

(1) Appropriation Level

HARBECK-FRUITDALE SEWER DISTRICT

-71 -

VARIANCE
TO FINAL
BUDGET
ORIGINAL FINAL POSITIVE
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
5000 $ 2,700 $ 2,366 $ (334)
150 120 102 (18)
5,150 2,820 2,468 (352)
1,550 600 (1) 803 (203)
3,100 3,400 (1) 3,100 300
1,125 449 (1) - 449
5,775 4,449 3,903 546
(625) (1,629) (1,435) 194
(625) (1,629) (1,435) 194
0
2,336 1,629 1,629 -
1,711 $ -8 194 194
69,015
28,161
(58,900)
$ 38,470



CITY OF GRANTS PASS
JOSEPHINE COUNTY, OREGON
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
ACTUAL AND BUDGET - BUDGETARY BASIS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

REDWOOD SANITARY SEWER DISTRICT

VARIANCE
TO FINAL
BUDGET
ORIGINAL FINAL POSITIVE
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
REVENUES:
Charges for Services $ 1,114,700 § 1,114,700 §$ 1,003,351 $ (111,349)
Interest on Investments 50,000 40,000 54,448 14,448
Total Revenues 1,164,700 1,154,700 1,057,799 (96,901)
EXPENDITURES:
Collection 94,383 94,383 (1) 74,813 19,570
Pump and Conveyance System 268,800 268,800 (1) 250,268 18,532
Customer Services 15,236 15,236 (1) 12,085 3,151
General Program Operations 198,084 198,084 (1) 132,695 65,389
Capital Outlay 10,200 10,200 (1) 6,144 4,056
Debt service:
Principal 298,174 298,174 (1) 298,174 -
Interest 152,044 152,044 (1) 148,088 3,956
Contingency 196,779 196,779 (1) - 196,779
Total Expenditures 1,233,700 1,233,700 922,267 311,433
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers In - - - -
Transfers Out - - - -
Total Other Financing Sources - - - -
Net Change in Fund Balance (69,000) (79,000) 135,532 214,532
Beginning Fund Balance 1,101,440 1,186,278 1,186,278 -
Ending Fund Balance $ 1,032,440  § 1,107,278  § 1,321,810 § 214,532

Reconciliation to Net Assets

Fixed Assets, net $ 9,634,742

Deferred Revenue 81,357

Notes Payable (3,595,824)
Total Net Assets $ 7,442,085

(1) Appropriation Level

_72 -



CITY OF GRANTS PASS
JOSEPHINE COUNTY, OREGON
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2008
FLEET SUPPORT ADMINISTRATIVE INSURANCE
OPERATIONS SERVICES SERVICES SERVICES
FUND FUND FUND FUND TOTAL
ASSETS:
Current assets
Cash and Investments $ 2,791,871 § 806,497 $ 1,076,084  § 2,268,803 6,943,255
Prepaid Items - 12,900 - 11,189 24,089
Receivables
Accounts, net - 28,055 279 38,713 67,047
Accrued interest - - - - -
Due from other funds - - - 55,000 55,000
Total current assets 2,791,871 847,452 1,076,363 2,373,705 7,089,391
Fixed assets, net 1,448,206 445,784 10,781 - 1,904,771
Total assets $ 4,240,077 $ 1,293236 §$ 1,087,144  § 2,373,705 8,994,162
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS:
LIABILITIES:
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable $ 24,675 % 83,043 $ 4478  $ 163,049 315,553
Salaries, withholdings and taxes payable 44,043 303,919 259,405 4,761 612,128
Pending Claims - - - 79,755 79,755
Due to other funds - - - - -
Total Current Liabilities 68,718 386,962 304,191 247,565 1,007,436
Total Liabilities 68,718 386,962 304,191 247,565 1,007,436
NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets, net of related debt 1,448,206 445,784 10,781 - 1,904,771
Unrestricted 2,723,153 460,490 772,172 2,126,140 6,081,955
Total Net Assets 4,171,359 906,274 782,953 2,126,140 7,986,726
Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 4,240,077 $ 1,293,236 $ 1,087,144  § 2,373,705 8,994,162
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CITY OF GRANTS PASS

JOSEPHINE COUNTY, OREGON

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

OPERATING REVENUES:

Charges for Services
Miscellaneous

Total Operating Revenues
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Salaries and Wages
Operating Supplies
Repairs and Maintenance
Utilities
Professional Services
General, Administrative and Engineering
Depreciation
Total Operating Expenses
Total Operating Income (Loss)
NONOPERATING INCOME (LOSS)
Gain (Loss) on the Sale of Assets
Intergovernmental
Interest Income
Total nonoperating income (expense)
Income, (Loss) Before Operating Transfers
TRANSFERS
Transfers In
Transfers Out
Total Transfers
Change in Net Assets

Beginning Net Assets

Ending Net Assets

FLEET SUPPORT ~ ADMINISTRATIVE INSURANCE
OPERATIONS SERVICES SERVICES SERVICES

FUND FUND FUND FUND TOTAL
1,025,690 $ 2974296 $ 2,868,282 $ 3295584 $ 10,163,852
2,825 55,715 2,128 83,610 144,278
1,028,515 3,030,011 2,870,410 3,379,194 10,308,130
247,868 1,806,915 1,947,694 87,252 4,089,729
308,154 63,484 60,965 6,452 439,055
23,894 167,972 1,624 - 193,490
52 100,397 14,046 - 114,495
52,271 102,914 358,778 62,671 576,634
281,003 482,203 304,419 2,932,174 3,999,799
300,215 32,249 19,104 - 351,568
1,213,457 2,756,134 2,706,630 3,088,549 9,764,770
(184,942) 273,877 163,780 290,645 543,360
31 3,910 33,136 - 37,077
113,985 10,047 43,828 91,160 259,020
114,016 13,957 76,964 91,160 296,097
(70,926) 287,834 240,744 381,805 839,457
81,000 - - - 81,000
- (50,000) - - (50,000)
81,000 (50,000) - - 31,000
10,074 237,834 240,744 381,805 870,457
4,161,285 668,440 542,209 1,744,335 7,116,269
4171359 $ 906,274 $ 782,953 $ 2,126,140 $ 7,986,726
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CITY OF GRANTS PASS
JOSEPHINE COUNTY, OREGON

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Cash Received from Customers
Cash Paid to Suppliers
Cash Paid to Employees
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities
Intergovernmental Revenue
Gain (Loss) on the Sale of Assets
Transfers In
Transfers Out
Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities

Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities
Acquisition and Construction of Capital Assets
Net cash provided (used) by capital financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest on Investments

Net increase (decrease) in cash and investments
Cash and investments, beginning of year
Cash and investments, end of year

Reconciliation of Operating Income to
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Operating Income
Depreciation and Amortization
(Increase) Decrease in Receivables
Increase (Decrease) in Payables
Increase (Decrease) in Payroll Liabilities

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities
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FLEET SUPPORT
OPERATIONS SERVICES
FUND FUND
1,034,261 3,068,293
(681,677) (858,565)
(220,602) (1,690,029)
131,082 519,699
31 3,910
81,000 .
- (50,000)
81,031 (46,090)
(116,300) (159,237)
(116,300) (159,237)
113,985 10,047
210,698 324,419
2,581,173 482,078
2,791,871 806,497
(184,942) 273,877
300,215 32,249
5,746 38,282
(16,303) 58,405
27,266 116,886
131,982 519,699




ADMINISTRATIVE INSURANCE
SERVICES SERVICES
FUND FUND TOTAL

$ 2,872,704  $ 3,352,283 $ 10,327,541
(735,422) (3,043,124) (5,318,788)
(1,916,589) (85,143) (3,912,363)
220,693 224,016 1,096,390

33,136 - 37,077

- 125,000 206,000
. - (50,000)

33,136 125,000 193,077
. - (275,537)
- B (275,537)

43,828 91,160 259,020

297,657 440,176 1,272,950

778,427 1,828,627 5,670,305

$ 1,076,084  § 2,268,803 $ 6,943,255
$ 163,780  $ 290,645 $ 543,360
19,104 - 351,568

2,294 (26,911) 19,411

4,410 (41,827) 4,685

31,105 2,109 177,366

$ 220,693 $ 224,016 $ 1,096,390
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CITY OF GRANTS PASS
JOSEPHINE COUNTY, OREGON
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
ACTUAL AND BUDGET - BUDGETARY BASIS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

FLEET OPERATIONS FUND
VARIANCE
TO FINAL
BUDGET
ORIGINAL FINAL POSITIVE
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
REVENUES:

Intergovernmenal - - % 31 31
Charges for Services 1,139,948 1,139,948 1,025,690 (114,258)
Interest on Investments 70,900 114,211 113,985 (226)
Miscellaneous 341,547 10,000 2,825 (7,175)

Total Revenues 1,552,395 1,264,159 1,142,531 (121,628)
EXPENDITURES:
Garage Operations 715,179 747,159 (1) 761,972 (14,813)
Equipment Replacement Operations 395,002 397,307 (1) 267,569 129,738
Contingency 310,000 300,000 (1) - 300,000
Total Expenditures 1,420,181 1,444,466 1,029,541 414,925
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 132,214 (180,307) 112,990 293,297
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Transfers In 81,000 81,000 81,000 -
Sale of Assets - - - -
Transfers Out - - - -
Total Other Financing Sources 81,000 81,000 81,000 -
Net Change in Fund Balance 213,214 (99,307) 193,990 293,297
Beginning Fund Balance 1,988,974 2,529,164 2,529,164 -
Ending Fund Balance 2,202,188 2,429857 $ 2,723,154 293,297
Reconciliation to Net Assets
Fixed Assets, net 1,448,205
Total Net Assets $ 4,171,359

(1) Appropriation Level
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CITY OF GRANTS PASS
JOSEPHINE COUNTY, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
ACTUAL AND BUDGET - BUDGETARY BASIS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

REVENUES:

Intergovernmental
Charges for Services
Interest on Investments
Miscellaneous Revenues

Total Revenues
EXPENDITURES:
Property Management
Engineering Services
Community Development Management
Information Technology
Debt Service
Contingency
Total expenditures
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCE (USES)
Interfund Loans
Transfer In
Transfers Out
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balance

Beginning Fund Balance

Ending Fund Balance
Reconciliation to Net Assets
Interfund Loans

Fixed Assets, net

Total Net Assets

(1) Appropriation Level
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SUPPORT SERVICES FUND

VARIANCE

TO FINAL

BUDGET

ORIGINAL FINAL POSITIVE

BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
1,000 $ 1,000 $ 3910 §$ 2,910
2,980,567 2,955,818 2,974,296 18,478
11,400 15,900 10,047 (5,853)
136,371 13,214 55,715 42,501
3,129,338 2,985,932 3,043,968 58,036
611,302 486,010 (1) 459,629 26,381
1,118,644 1,118,644 (1) 1,104,502 14,142
685,613 685,613 (1) 638,544 47,069
622,687 596,464 551,697 44,767
. - R -

45813 190,271 (1) - 190,271
3,084,059 3,077,002 2,754,372 322,630
45,279 (91,070) 289,596 380,666
(132,279) (132,279) (128,752) 3,527
(5,000) (50,000) (1) (50,000) -
(137,279) (182,279) (178,752) 3,527
(92,000) (273,349) 110,844 384,193
92,000 349,646 349,646 -
- $ 76297 $ 460,490  $ 384,193

445,784
$ 906,274



CITY OF GRANTS PASS
JOSEPHINE COUNTY, OREGON
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
ACTUAL AND BUDGET - BUDGETARY BASIS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES FUND

VARIANCE
TO FINAL
BUDGET
ORIGINAL FINAL POSITIVE
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental $ 53,475  $ 24,500 $ 33,136  $ 8,636
Charges for Services 2,860,875 2,922,962 2,868,282 (54,680)
Interest on Investments 15,000 43,500 43,828 328
Miscellaneous Revenues 100,000 1,476 2,128 652
Total Revenues 3,029,350 2,992,438 2,947,374 (45,064)
EXPENDITURES:
Management Services 697,194 714,550 (1) 743,789 (29,239)
Legal Services 235,058 302,567 (1) 224,093 78,474
Administrative Services 1,650,561 1,565,850 (1) 1,496,162 69,688
General Program Operations 318,433 297,008 (1) 223,482 73,526
Contingency 289,240 624,788 (1) - 624,788
Total expenditures 3,190,486 3,504,763 2,687,526 817,237
Net Change in Fund Balance (161,136) (512,325) 259,848 772,173
Beginning Fund Balance 318,164 512,325 512,325 -
Ending Fund Balance $ 157,028  $ - % 772,173 $ 772,173

Reconciliation to Net Assets
Fixed Assets, net 10,780

Total Net Assets $ 782,953

(1) Appropriation Level
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CITY OF GRANTS PASS
JOSEPHINE COUNTY, OREGON
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
ACTUAL AND BUDGET - BUDGETARY BASIS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

INSURANCE SERVICES FUND
VARIANCE
TO FINAL
BUDGET
ORIGINAL FINAL POSITIVE
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
REVENUES:

Intergovernmental $ 8,468 § 8,468 % - % (8,468)
Charges for Services 3,302,021 3,313,031 3,295,584 (17,447)
Interest on Investments 76,500 78,500 91,160 12,660
Miscellaneous 618,104 474,678 83,611 (391,067)

Total Revenues 4,005,093 3,874,677 3,470,355 (404,322)
EXPENDITURES:
General Insurance Services 480,464 572,622 (1) 355,374 217,248
Benefits Administration 2,720,250 2,586,900 (1) 2,531,179 55,721
Workers' Compensation Insurance 402,006 411,024 (1) 201,996 209,028
Contingency 625,000 505,000 (1) - 505,000
Total Expenditures 4,227,720 4,075,546 3,088,549 986,997
Net Change in Fund Balance (222,627) (200,869) 381,806 582,675
Beginning Fund Balance 1,353,663 1,564,334 1,564,334 -
Prior Period Adjustment -
Ending Fund Balance $ 1,131,036  § 1,363,465 § 1,946,140 § 582,675
Reconciliation to Net Assets
Interfund Loans 180,000
Total Net Assets $ 2,126,140

(1) Appropriation Level

- 80 -



CITY OF GRANTS PASS

JOSEPHINE COUNTY, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES - AGENCY FUND
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Assets
Cash and Investments
Accounts Receivable

Total Assets

Liabilities
Due to Others

Balance at Balance at
June 30, 2007 Additions Deductions June 30, 2008
4,261,399 $ 3,582,922 $ 4,261,399 $ 3,582,922
(3,066) - (3,066) -
4,258,333 $ 3,582,922 $ 4,258,333 $ 3,582,922
4,258,333 $ 3,589,992 $ 4,258,333 $ 3,582,922
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CITY OF GRANTS PASS

JOSEPHINE COUNTY, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF PROPERTY TAX TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

OF TAXES UNCOLLECTED

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

GENERAL AND WATER FUNDS
IMPOSED BALANCE
LEVY OR CASH UNCOLLECTED
BALANCE ADJUSTMENTS COLLECTIONS OR
TAX UNCOLLECTED DEDUCT TO ADD BY COUNTY UNSEGREGATED
YEAR AT 711/67 DISCOUNTS ROLLS INTEREST TREASURER AT 6/30/08
Current:
2007-08 $ 12,892,015 290,280 $ 0 § 6,320 § 12,159,160 448,895
Prior Years:
2006-07 361,177 38 (47,952) 9,973 185,494 137,666
2005-06 109,950 0 (24,134) 5,101 44,046 46,871
2004-05 36,651 0 2,561 5,539 33,156 11,595
2003-04 11,819 0 (5,435) 1,129 5,533 1,980
2002-03 1,836 0 (330) 185 695 996
Prior 3,656 0 (403) 373 1,168 2,458
Total Prior 525,089 38 (75,693) 22,300 270,092 201,566
Total All
Funds $ 13,417,104 290,318 $ (75,693) $§ 28,620 § 12,429,252 650,461
RECONCILIATION TO REVENUE:
Cash Collections by County Treasurer Above 12,429,252
Accrual of Receivables:
June 30, 2007 (157,025)
June 30, 2008 156,102
Miscellaneous Taxes 5,721
Total Revenue 12,434,050
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PARKWAY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY FUND

ORIGINAL BALANCE
LEVY OR CASH UNCOLLECTED
BALANCE ADJUSTMENTS COLLECTIONS OR
UNCOLLECTED DEDUCT TO ADD BY COUNTY UNSEGREGATED
AT JULY 1, 2007 DISCOUNTS ROLLS INTEREST TREASURER AT JUNE 30, 2008
Current:
2007-08 $ 1,959,130 § 62421  $ 0 3 515§ 1,828493 § 68,216
Prior Years:
2006-07 59,182 6 (10,114) 1,234 27,738 22,558
2005-06 20,153 0 (5,181) 706 7,087 8,591
2004-05 7,746 0 (1,121 745 4,919 2,451
2003-04 2,404 0 (1,143) 197 1,055 403
Prior 1,160 0 (161) 114 383 730
Total Prior 90,645 6 (17,720) 2,996 41,182 34,733
Total 3 2,049.775 § 62427 $ (17,720) 3 3511 $ 1,869675 $ 102,949
RECONCILIATION TO REVENUE
Cash Collections by County Treasurer Above $ 1,869,675
Accrual of Receivables:
June 30, 2007 (26,808)
June 30, 2008 15,600
Miscellaneous Taxes 26,810
Total Revenue 3 1,885,277
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CITY OF GRANTS PASS
JOSEPHINE COUNTY., OREGON

STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the City of Grants Pass’ comprehensive annual report presents detailed information
as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures
and required supplementary information says about the government’s overall financial health.

Contents

Financial Trends

These schedules contain frend information to help the reader understand how the
government’s financial performance and well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the government’s most
significant local revenue source, the property tax.

Debt Capacity

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the
government's current levels of outstanding debt and the government’s ability to issue
additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information

These schedules offer demographics and economic indicators to help the reader
understand the environment within which the government’s financial activities take
place.

Operating Information

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand
how the information in the government’s financial report relates to the services the
government provides and the activities it performs.

Page
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113

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules in derived from the comprehensive annual financial reports

for the relevant year.
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CITY OF GRANTS PASS
JOSEPHINE COUNTY, OREGON

NET ASSETS BY COMPONENT

Governmental Activities

Invested in Capital Assets, net of related debt
Restricted for Capital Purposes
Unrestricted

Total governmental activities net assets

Business-Type Activities

Invested in Capital Assets, net of related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total business-type activities net assets

Primary government

Invested in Capital Assets, net of related debt
Restricted for Capital Purposes
Unrestricted

Total primary government net assets

For the last six fiscal years*

(Unaudited)
Fiscal Year

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
61,446,389 70,817,161 41,109,766 94,714,953 109,719,868 129,195,607
. - - - - 3,706,534
15,919,809 18,056,168 57,569,142 20,457,257 37,053,641 26,433,560
77,366,198 88,873,329 98,678,908 115,172,210 146,773,509 159,335,701
61,220,836 62,607,143 66,870,761 71,185,429 76,870,093 82,828,074
7,128214 8,969,442 11,226,231 11,829,156 13,009,932 11,255,966
68,349,050 71,576,585 78,096,992 83,014,585 89,880,025 94,084,040
122,667,225 133,424,304 107,980,527 165,900,382 186,589,961 212,023,742
- - - - - 3,706,534
23,048,023 27,025,610 68,795,373 32,286,413 50,063,573 37,689,465
145,715,248 160,449,914 176,775,900 198,186,795 236,653,534 253,419,741

*The reporting of these statistics began after GASB 34 implementation, therefore only six years are reported.
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CITY OF GRANTS PASS
JOSEPHINE COUNTY, OREGON

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

For the last six fiscal years

(Unaudited)
Fiscal Year
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
Expenses
Governmental Activities
Public Safety $ 6,861,932 §$ 8,967,348 $ 11,308,389 % 8505477 $ 13,897,740 $ 12,104,326
Transportation 1,511,761 1,672,361 1,357,134 1,007,261 1,662,747 1,430,601
Building 644,421 862,341 1,110,231 765,541 1,178,647 910,259
Parks 1,139,412 361,174 1,518,671 1,135,134 1,666,934 1,450,608
Development 2,639,705 2,493,017 2,392,553 2,815,350 2,099,393 3,278,657
General Government 246,978 245,936 143,923 193,264 226,893 218,905
Solid Waste 325,399 378,738 2,050,240 (139,183) 787,168 1,474,560
Interest 149,460 364,393 173,982 339,344 212,221 445,088
Total Governmental Activities Expenses 13,519,068 15,345,308 20,055,123 14,622,188 21,731,743 21,313,004
Business- Type Activities
Water 2,643,028 2,908,859 3,397,559 3,660,103 3,795,099 3,019,237
Sewer 3,394,601 3,606,999 5,015,385 4,544,046 4,673,214 5,617,811
Interest 416,330 547,167 HEx
Total Business-Type Activities Expenses 6,453,959 7,063,625 8,412,944 8,204,149 8,468,313 8,637,048
Total Primary Government Expenses $ 19,973,027 % 22,408,933 $ 28468067 $ 22,826,337 $ 30,200,056 $ 29,950,052
Program Revenues
Governmental Activities
Charges for Service: $ 3,097,391 § 4,786,614 $ 6,946,869 §$ 9,180,248 $ - $ -
Transportation - - - - 23,214,300 3,541,708
General Government - - - - 5,281,710 1,161,947
Other - - - - 2,127,083 1,938,835
Operating Grants and Contributions 59,361 274,952 377,726 2,239,659 142,581 184,284
Capital Grants 398,285
Dedicated Property Taxes 7,435,680 * * * * *
Total Governmental Activities Revenues 10,592,432 5,061,566 7,324,595 11,419,907 31,163,959 6,826,774
Business-Type Activities
Charges for Service: 7,579,395 8,364,037 8,781,698 10,341,297 - -
Water 5,052,827 4,461,350
Sewer 6,281,328 5,940,872
Operating Grants and Contributions - - - 1,761,536 2,873,646 1,010,140
Total Business-Type Activities Revenues 7,579,395 8,364,037 8,781,698 12,102,833 14,207,801 11,412,362
Total Primary Government Revenues $ 18,171,827 § 13,425,603 $ 16,106,293 $ 23,522,740 $ 45371,760 $ 18,239,136
Net (Expense)/Revenue
Governmental Activities $ (2,926,636) § (10,283,742) (12,730,528) (3,202,281) 9,432,217 $ (14,486,230)
Business-Type Activities 1,125,436 1,300,412 368,754 3,898,684 5,739,488 2,775,314
Total Primary Government Net Expense $ (1,801,200) $ (8,983,330) $ (12,361,774) $ 696,403 $ 15,171,704 $ (11,710,916)
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CITY OF GRANTS PASS
JOSEPHINE COUNTY, OREGON

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS (continuted)

General Revenues and Other Changes in Net Assets

Governmental Activities

Taxes $ 2,936,236 $ 11,035419 § 11,922,037 §$ 14,003,723 §$ 16,153,726 % 18,241,381
Licenses and Permits 58,381 w% ok #ok wE ok
Intergovernmental 4,264,905 3,636,796 3,805,599 3,727,927 3,551,395 5,071,345
Fines and Forfeitures 156,635 Fk ** *ok *x ok
Special Assessments 893,573 *x ** *x *x **
Interest 421,389 307,318 535,698 914,546 1,459,814 1,856,733
Interest on Assessments 187,030 50,633 FhkE ol ol Hkkk
Trust Receipts 7,723 153,920 222,376 204,401 77,560 233,637
Contributions 6,450 6,168,301 5,520,142 ke Rk Rk
Industrial Payments 68,572 100,441 36,716 29,835 69,068 7,151
Sale of Assets 460,857 171,194 wRAE Hk ko Fkokok wEAE
Miscellaneous 395,065 76,351 51,624 749,580 735,071 1,985,656
Transfers 623,055 377,096 441915 65,571 122,447 (347,481)
Total Governmental Activities $ 10,479,871 % 22,077,469 $ 22,536,107 $ 19,695,583 §$ 22,169081 § 27,048,422

Business-Type Activities

Taxes b 867 % 380 $ 146 § - 3 - 5 -
Licenses and Permits - - - - - -
Intergovernmental 171,211 212,002 240,625 260,966 275,843 257,045
Fines and Forfeitures - - - - 0 -
Special Assessments 12,252 *k *x *k *x *ok
Interest 132,832 107,273 168,727 361,315 559,754 407,972
Interest on Assessments - - - - - -
Trust Receipts 39,559 113,339 91,044 176,422 100,445 67,968
Contributions 1,888,150 1,553,530 5,831,783 oAk FoAdk kol
Industrial Payments - - - - - -
Sale of Assets 39,291 (70,560) Fekdk FkkE i o
Miscellaneous 165,437 388,255 261,243 285,777 312,358 350,236
Transfers (623,055) (377,096) (441,915) (65,571) -122 447 347481
Total Business-Type Activities $ 1,826,544 $ 1,927,123 § 6,151,653 § 1,018,909 $ 1,125953 % 1,430,702
Total Primary Government $ 12,306,415 $ 24,004,592 $ 28,687,760 $ 20,714,492 % 23,295,034 $ 28,479,124

Change in Net Assets

Governmental Activities $ 7,553,235 % 11,793,727 § 9,805,579 % 16,493,302 $ 31,601,298 $ 12,562,192
Business-Type Activities 2,951,980 3,227,535 6,520,407 4,917,593 6,865,441 4,206,016
Total Primary Government $ 10,505,215  $ 15,021,262 § 16,325,986 § 21,410,895 § 38,466,739 § 16,768,208

* Dedicated property taxes are reported in General Revenue under Taxes in 2004.

** From 2004 forward this revenue is reported as Charges for Services in Program Revenues.

**% From 2005 forward the interest expense is recorded in the activity in which it was expensed.

**x%% From 2005 forward the interest and interest on assessments is combined and the sale of assests is in miscellaneous.
*#kx¥From 2006 forward this revenue is reported as Charges for Services in Program Revenues.

NOTE: The reporting of these statistics began after GASB 34 implementation, therefore only six years are reported.
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CITY OF GRANTS PASS
JOSEPHINE COUNTY, OREGON

PROGRAM REVENUE BY FUNCTION

For the last six fiscal years

(Unaudited)
Fiscal Year
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
Program Revenues

Governmental Activities

Public Safety * $ 6,335,774 § 792,525 § 529,560 $ 484,070 $ 343,114 $ 488,697

Transportation 1,442,317 2,063,175 3,182,643 6,353,654 23,224,198 3,541,968

Building 909,784 1,155,723 1,394,747 1,241,980 903,800 835,566

Parks 15,814 36,387 19,550 827,167 4,750 452,763

Development 1,564,195 655,463 1,311,569 290,772 1,061,950 20,758

General Government 6,556 10,745 552,682 1,876,329 5,281,710 1,161,947

Solid Waste 317,992 347,548 333,844 345,935 344 437 325,075
Subtotal Governmental activities 10,592,432 5,061,566 7,324,595 11,419,907 31,163,959 6,826,774
Business- Type Activities

Water 3,615,418 4,000,671 4,114,400 5,854,617 7,029,744 5,204,874

Sewer 3,963,977 4,363,366 4,667,298 6,248216 7,178,057 6,207,488
Subtotal Business-Type Activities 7,579,395 8,364,037 8,781,698 12,102,833 14,207,801 11,412,362
Total Primary Government $ 18,171,827 § 13,425,603 $ 16,106,293 $ 23,522,740 $ 45,371,760 $ 18,239,136

* In FY'03 Public Safety program revenue included Dedicated Property Taxes.
From FY'04 forward Property Taxes are recorded in the General Revenues section
of the Statement of Activities.

NOTE: The reporting of these statistics began after GASB 34 implementation, therefore only six years are reported.

-87-



CITY OF GRANTS PASS
JOSEPHINE COUNTY, OREGON

FUND BALANCES, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the last six fiscal years

(Unaudited)
Fiscal Year
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
General Fund
Reserved $ - -3 - 5 - 8 -3 -
Unreserved 2,727,493 2,423,670 3,019,923 4,438 485 5,581,614 7,482,929
Total General Fund $ 2,727,493 $ 2,423,670 $ 3,019923 §$ 4438485 § 5,581,614 § 7,482,929
All Other Governmental Funds
Reserved $ 945,262 (1,381,330) (1,493,576) (2,391,514) (1,500,626) $ 3,706,534
Unreserved, reported in:
Special Revenue Funds 5,240,358 5,637,517 5,767,543 5,645,630 5,728,115 5,692,914
Capital Projects Funds 4,956,270 6,566,730 6,580,497 5,549,350 17,027,517 8,492,654
Parkway Redevelopment Fund 204,170 1,006,724 2,361,678 2,260,888 3,707,773 3,711,979
Debt Service Funds (1,916,214) - - - - (1,386,260)
Total All Governmental Funds $ 9,429,846 $ 14253311 § 16,236,065 § 15,502,839 § 30,544,393 §$ 27,700,750

NOTE: The reporting of these statistics began after GASB 34 implementation, therefore only six years are reported.
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CITY OF GRANTS PASS
JOSEPHINE COUNTY, OREGON

TAX REVENUE BY SOURCE, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS"

For the last ten fiscal years

(Unaudited)

Fiscal

Year Transient
Ended Room

June 30, Property Business Franchise Tax Total

1999 4,910,494 190,578 1,449,605 603,868 7,154,545
2000 5,124,525 263,524 1,498,060 625,480 7,511,590
2001 5,375,396 245,783 1,590,649 686,781 7,898,609
2002 5,689,844 264,897 1,708,606 778,561 8,441,907
2003 7,438,564 257,322 1,761,362 923,195 10,380,443
2004 8,047,184 265,026 1,869,265 912,507 11,093,982
2005 8,705,901 289,165 1,931,515 927,631 11,854,212
2006 10,556,145 307,492 2,140,490 1,002,776 14,006,903
2007 12,450,442 305,103 2,351,245 1,046,936 16,153,726
2008 14,411,920 320,413 2,484,617 1,024,431 18,241,381

(1) Includes General, Special Revenue and Debt Service Funds in years 1994-2002, from 2003 on,
includes all governmental funds.
Source: Annual financial statements and internal accounting reports of the City of Grants Pass
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CITY OF GRANTS PASS
JOSEPHINE COUNTY, OREGON

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

For the last ten fiscal years

(Unaudited)
Current
Tax Total Uncollected
Collections Collections Taxes
Fiscal as a asa asa
Year Taxes Current Percentage Delinquent Total Percentage Uncollected Percentage
Ended Levied by Tax of Current Taxes Tax of Current Delinquent of Current
June 30, Assessor Collections Levy Collected Collections Levy Taxes Levy
1999 5,289,752 4,847,215 92% 364,713 5,211,928 99% 490,179 9%
2000 5,548,281 5,125,870 92% 362,303 5,488,173 99% 472,721 9%
2001 5,475,944 5,069,343 93% 319,633 5,388,976 98% 435,506 8%
2002 5,816,331 5,415,158 93% 297,333 5,712,491 98% 414,740 7%
2003 6,252,061 5,851,379 94% 288,342 6,139,722 98% 404,297 6%
2004 6,804,725 6,386,298 94% 275,413 6,661,711 98% 377,548 6%
2005 7,427,728 6,943,714 93% 274,297 7,218,011 97% 399,011 5%
2006 9,171,224 8,639,674 94% 259,400 8,899,074 97% 409,395 4%
2007 11,019,070 10,326,444 94% 239,558 10,566,002 96% 525,089 5%
2008 12,892,015 12,159,160 94% 270,092 12,429,252 96% 650,461 5%

Source: Annual financial statements and internal accounting reports of the City of Grants Pass
*does not include the Parkway Redevelopment Fund
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CITY OF GRANTS PASS
JOSEPHINE COUNTY, OREGON

CONSOLIDATED TAX RATES
(Per $1,000 of Assessed Value)

For the last ten fiscal years

(Unaudited)

Fiscal

Year Debt Parkway

Ended General Service Water Redevelopment

June 30, Total Fund Fund Fund Fund

1999 5.29 4.98 0.31 -
2000 5.28 4.99 0.29 -
2001 4.98 498 - -
2002 498 498 - -
2003 4.98 498 - -
2004 5.02 5.02 - -
2005 5.02 5.02 - -
2006 5.62 5.62 - -
2007 5.62 5.62 - -
2008 6.13 6.13 - -

Source: Annual financial statements and internal accounting reports of the City of Grants Pass
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CITY OF GRANTS PASS
JOSEPHINE COUNTY, OREGON

CONSOLIDATED TAX LEVIES

For the last ten fiscal years

(Unaudited)
Fiscal
Year Debt Parkway
Ended General Service Water Wastewater Redevelopment
June 30, Total Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund

1999 6,285,443 4,979,752 - 310,000 - 995,691
2000 6,684,935 5,238,282 - 310,000 - 1,136,653
2001 6,674,921 5,475,944 - - - 1,198,977
2002 7,003,863 5,816,331 - - - 1,187,532
2003 7,597,316 6,252,061 - - - 1,333,678
2004 8,188,825 6,804,725 - - - 1,384,100
2005 8,997,490 7,427,728 - - - 1,569,762
2006 10,852,219 9,171,224 - - - 1,680,995
2007 12,824,629 11,019,070 - - - 1,805,559
2008 14,851,145 12,892,015 - - - 1,959,130

Source: Josephine County
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CITY OF GRANTS PASS
JOSEPHINE COUNTY, OREGON

ASSESSED AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY *

For the last ten fiscal years

Source: Josephine County

N/A - Not Available

* The City's property tax base is entirely real property and does not include personal property.

Ratio of Assessed
Value to
Market
Value

- 95 -

(Unaudited)

Fiscal

Year Real Property

Ended

June 30, Assessed Value Market Value

1999 1,068,703,948 N/A

2000 1,129,100,398 N/A

2001 1,180,905,168 N/A

2002 1,253,169,191 1,410,511,653
2003 1,350,701,461 1,551,801,287
2004 1,446,214,463 1,770,587,263
2005 1,579,311,858 2,173,784,655
2006 1,728,922,043 2,689,529,405
2007 2,065,307,699 3,690,578,756
2008 2,207,029,376 3,817,384,012

N/A
N/A
N/A
89%
87%
82%
73%
64%
56%
58%
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CITY OF GRANTS PASS
JOSEPHINE COUNTY, OREGON

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT COLLECTIONS

For the last ten fiscal years

(Unaudited)
Ratio
Fiscal Assessments Additional Collections to
Year Outstanding Assessments Assessments Assessments Outstanding
Ended Beginning Made Collected Adjustments Outstanding Assessments
June 30, of Year During Year During Year During Year End of Year During Year
1999 484,638 - 125,491 (4,982) 354,165 29.9%
2000 354,165 12,419 94,495 15,826 287,915 29.4%
2001 287,915 199,203 82,807 (7,329) 396,982 24.2%
2002 396,982 677,646 155,975 (4,783) 913,870 23.8%
2003 913,870 863,628 532,230 2,760 1,248,028 49.2%
2004 1,248,028 101,418 517,741 (82,271) 749,434 51.8%
2005%* 749,434 566,527 457,152 12,609 871,418 52.5%
2006 871,418 1,563,448 561,900 0 1,872,966 30.0%
2007* 1,872,966 11,692 963,791 0 920,867 104.7%
2008 920,867 1,260,672 162,020 (2,895) 2,016,624 8.0%

Source: Internal accounting reports of the City of Grants Pass

* Correction made to ending balance in 2005 and 2007. Additions by ordinance not included in Additional

Assessments total.
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CITY OF GRANTS PASS
JOSEPHINE COUNTY, OREGON

COMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT

Jurisdiction

For the last ten fiscal years

(Unaudited)
Grants Pass School District No. 7
Fiscal Percentage Amount
Year Applicable Applicable
Ended Net Debt to City of to City of
June 30, Outstanding Grants Pass Grants Pass
1999 40,395,000 65.32% 26,386,014
2000 36,443,139 70.00% 25,510,197
2001 36,965,000 74.96% 27,708,964
2002 34,990,000 75.72% 26,494,428
2003 32,825,000 77.29% 25,370,443
2004 30,650,000 78.24% 23,980,560
2005 27,715,000 80.34% 22,266,231
2006 24,665,000 92.04% 22,701,660
2007 21,460,000 92.57% 19,865,522
2008 18,125,000 92.69% 16,800,403

Source:

Entity listed above
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CITY OF GRANTS PASS
JOSEPHINE COUNTY, OREGON

RATIO OF ANNUAL GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDED DEBT SERVICE
EXPENDITURES TO GENERAL EXPENDITURES

For the last ten fiscal years

(Unaudited)
Debt Service
Total asa
Total General Percentage of
Year of Debt Expenditures General
Maturity Principal Interest Service 8] Expenditures
1999 - - - 10,432,068 N/A
2000 - - - 10,512,516 N/A
2001 - - - 11,704,437 N/A
2002 - - - 18,665,940 N/A
2003 - - - 19,892,574 N/A
2004 21,285,276 N/A
2005 24,541,370 N/A
2006 28,313,858 N/A
2007 22,647,389 4.34%
2008 34,199,259 5.25%

(1) Includes General, Special Revenue and Debt Service Funds in 1996-2002, from 2003 on it includes all
governmental funds.

Source: Annual financial statements of the City of Grants Pass
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JOSEPHINE COUNTY, OREGON

CITY OF GRANTS PASS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUE BOND COVERAGE
WATER BONDS

For the last ten fiscal years

(Unaudited)

Fiscal Direct Net Revenue

Year Gross Operation Available

Ended Revenue Expenditures for Debt Debt Service Requirements
June 30, 0 2) Service Principal Interest Total Coverage
1999  (3) 4,041,802 1,070,597 2,971,205 1,185,000 298,825 1,483,825 2.00
2000 (3) 3,879,416 1,242,621 2,636,795 1,280,000 251,045 1,531,045 1.72
2001 (3) 3,549,285 1,617,606 1,931,679 235,000 176,165 411,165 4.70
2002 (3) 3,619,296 1,822,033 1,797,263 245,000 169,614 414,614 4.33
2003 (3) 3,730,443 1,809,437 1,921,006 255,000 157,200 412,200 4.66
2004 (3) 4,219,848 2,891,158 1,328,690 265,000 147,473 412,473 3.22
2005 (3) 4,385,147 3,376,904 1,008,243 280,000 134,895 414,895 2.43
2006 (3) 5,070,651 3,669,862 1,400,789 295,000 123,058 418,058 3.35
2007  (3) 5,412,155 3,777,173 1,634,982 305,000 111,430 416,430 3.93
2008 (3) 4,948,172 3,080,175 1,867,997 320,000 96,989 416,989 4.48

(1) Includes total operating revenue, interest income and taxes on a budgetary basis
(2) Includes total operating expenses, except for depreciation
(3) Includes revenues and expenses from Water Fund only

Source: Annual financial statements of the City of Grants Pass
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CITY OF GRANTS PASS
JOSEPHINE COUNTY, OREGON

PROPERTY VALUES, CONSTRUCTION VALUES AND BANK DEPOSITS

For the last ten fiscal years

(Unaudited)
Commercial Residential
Construction (1) Construction (1)
Fiscal Bank
Year Deposits Property Value (3)
Ended Number of Number of (in $1,000)

June 30, Units Value Units Value 2) Commercial Residential Nontaxable
1999 25 6,790,303 260 25,802,704 664,670 @ “4) @)
2000 100 33,101,557 197 20,898,092 709,466 “ @ “@
2001 52 50,110,899 247 31,564,269 753,956 O] 4) 6]
2002 59 17,771,045 239 32,332,952 835,906 O] @) “@
2003 45 18,098,182 274 49,745,662 901,476 @ @) %
2004 31 4,991,043 463 77,950,022 959,242 6] %) @
2005 32 33,579,289 470 79,408,188 1,038,152 4 4) 4
2006 17 19,666,915 508 80,933,576 1,030,196 O] #* @)
2007 32 18,799,032 278 40,407,617 1,179,020 @ @] 4%
2008 17 9,751,549 185 27,184,422 1,120,845 4 O] ()]

Source: (1) City Building Division
(2) FDIC, Credit Union not included
(3) City's value, per Josephine County
(4) Information not currently available
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CITY OF GRANTS PASS

JOSEPHINE COUNTY, OREGON

DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS

For the last ten fiscal years

(Unaudited)

Fiscal Personal

Year Income School

Ended Population (thousands of Per Capita Median Enrollment Unemployment
June 30, ) dollars) Income (2) Age 3) Rate (2)

1999 20,674 N/A N/A N/A 5,254 7.6%

2000 20,935 329,559 15,742 43 5,199 7.0%

2001 23,170 N/A N/A N/A 5,396 7.1%

2002 23,670 N/A N/A N/A 5,347 8.2%

2003 23,965 N/A N/A N/A 5,535 8.7%

2004 24,790 411,117 (est.) 16,584 (est.) 39.7 5,596 7.3%

2005 25,423 429,471 (est.) 16,893 (est.) 39.4 5,707 7.2%

2006 30,930 616,744 (est) 19,940 (est.) 382 5,779 6.9%

2007 31,740 593,301 (est) 18,702 (est) 43.5 5,655 6.7%

2008 32,290 561,555 (est) 17,391 (est) 44.6 5,647 7.3%

N/A = Information not available

Sources: (1) Portland State University Center of Population and Research
(2) City of Grants Pass Economic Development Department (see note)
(3) Grants Pass School District No. 7

Note: The City of Grants Pass does not have a large enough population to be considered an MSA (metropolitan service area).

Annual gathering of statistics is not done by the U.S. Census Bureau, therefore the 2000 census numbers are the numbers

used for most reporting. These numbers, while for the current year, are only estimates.
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INSURANCE AND SURETY BONDS IN FORCE

CITY OF GRANTS PASS
JOSEPHINE COUNTY, OREGON

June 30, 2008
{Unaudited)
Company Policy Number Amount Coverage Policy Term Premium
City - County 07LGSP $ 2,000,000 Comprehensive 7/01/2007 - 6/30/2008 $ 212,254
Insurance Services general liability
City - County 07APDGSP Various  Auto physical 7/01/2007 - 6/30/2008 26,927
Insurance Services damage
City - County 07PGSP 5,000,000 Property insurance (includes 7/01/2007 - 6/30/2008 66,984
Insurance Services earthquake and flood)
Travelers 100834725 50,000 Public Official Bond 8/10/2005 - 8/09/2008 188
Finance Director
Travelers 104717452 50,000  Public Official 3/22/2006 - 11/30/2008 250
Bond - City Manager
Life Insurance Company SPS900303 30,000 Volunteer accident 7/01/2007 - 6/30/2008 1,140
of North America
City - County 07EQGP 5,000,000  Excess earthquake 7/01/2007 - 6/30/2008 2,500
Insurance Services
National District Attorneys 65053 50,000 City Attorney 2/01/2007 - 2/01/2008 416
Association
Safety National Casualty AGC-1T80-OR 1,000,000  Excess workers' 7/01/2007 - 6/30/2008 35,193
compensation
American International PLS1957953 10,000,000  Pollution Legal Liability 12/31/2001 - 12/31/2011 200,000
Specialty Lines
American International EPP1957147 13,000,000  Solid waste-closure/post- 7/01/2001 - 7/01/2031 6,756,809
Specialty Lines closure
City - County 07LGSP 4,500,000  Excess Liability 7/01/2007 -7/01/2008 42,663
Insurance Services Coverage
City - County 07CGSP 200,000  Excess Crime 7/01/2007 - 6/30/2008 978

Insurance Services
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CITY OF GRANTS PASS

JOSEPHINE COUNTY, OREGON

OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION

Public Safety
Traffic stops
Warnings issued
Citations issued
Calls for service - Police
Calls for service - Fire
Businesses inspected
Business self-inspections
Citizen Public Safety Academy attendance
Student Public Safety Academy attendance

Transportation
Street overlays (square yards)
Street overlays (tons of asphalt)
Signage additions
Signage replacements
Miles of restriping

Building
Total Permits issued
New single family permits
New multi-family permits
New commercial permits
Total Inspections

Parks
Swimming pool attendance
Rental of facilities
Number of games scheduled

Development
Total land use applications
Subdivision final plats
Commercial site plan review

Water
New connections
Number of consumers
Total water produced (1000s of gallons)
Average daily production (gallons)

Wastewater
Wastewater treated (1000s of gallons)
Sludge to co-compost (yards)
Greenwaste received (cubic yards)
Woodwaste received (cubic yards)
JO-GRO*™ sales (cubic yards)

Sources:
(1) City Public Safety Department
(2) City Community Development Department

Notes:

* The 2004 Business Inspection numbers are from January 1 through September 30, 2004. The Little League
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June 30, 2008
(Unaudited)
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
5,519 6,318 6,755 7,580
3,870 4,232 4,340 5,278
6,381 5,469 5,180 4,416 4,119 4,082
27,146 28,209 33,591 %* 36324%* 37,296 41,395
3,491 3,426 3,190 3,126 3,591 3,698
439 557* 249%* 839 1,295 1,342
455 503* 454+ 614 607 67
52 52 50 40 29 28
30 27
73,830 52,648 41289** Oxx* 30,369 21,700
8,561 8,773 7506** Ox** 7,228 2,411
143 141 279** 177 121 91
339 135 189** 352 265 185
12.17 13.14 7.34%* 12.3 20 25
3,900 5,154 5,606 5,334 3,804 2,857
205 325 361 362 234 166
31 59 44 54 20 6
16 17 31 17 32 17
11,695 14,024 15,507 17,043 12,366 10,609
10,664 9,601 16,464 11,555 18,083 19,748
154 200 199 207 232 214
1,577 1387* 1,458 1,727 1,575 1,563
250 289 325 347 221 163
12 20 29 20 22 7
55 53 51 56 49 30
291 482 561 581 308 175
8,869 9,158 9,521 10,038 10,413 10,545
1,755,727 1,779,523 1,766,136 1,800,673 2,114,600 2,016,116
4,850,000 5,166,992 4,959,750 5,007,417 5,809,341 5,615,900
2,151,709 2,029,600 2,114,400 2,569,300 2,252,000 2,122,830
6,868 6,800 5,617 6,725 7,631 7,267
31,752 37,495 43,961 37,081 37,764 38,807
40,591 43,103 50,871 61,916 58,028 48,453
7,035 7,471 5,248 5,754 5,748 6,530

(3) City Administrative Services Department
(4) City Public Works Department
(5) City Parks and Community Services Department

played games at Rogue Community College in 2004 which lowered usage of All Sports Park.
** Tn 2005, Out for Contact and Community Oriented Policing Codes are included in the Calls for Service number.
The Business Inspection numbers are from January 1 through August 31, 2005. In the Transportation
section, the numbers are calculated from January 1 through October 11, 2005.

#**In FY'06 it was decided to postpone overlays until the next year to have additional funding for a major

project on Washington Blvd.in FY'07.

NOTE: The reporting of these statistics began after GASB 34 implementation, therefore onlysix years are reported.

-114 -



CITY OF GRANTS PASS
JOSEPHINE COUNTY, OREGON

CAPITAL ASSETS STATISTICS BY FUNCTION

Public Safety
Police stations
Sub-stations
Marked Patrol Units
Un-marked Patrol Units
K-9 units
Motorcycles
Specialty Vehicles
T3
Equipment Trailers
Fire stations
Pumpers
Ladder Trucks
Wildland Engine

Transportation
Streets (miles)
Streetlights

City Owned
PP&L Owned
Traffic signals

Parks
Number of parks
Acreage of parks
Swimming pools
Playgrounds
Baseball/softball fields
Soccer fields
Tennis courts

Water
Water mains (miles)
Fire hydrants

Storage capacity (millions of gallons)

Reservoirs

Wastewater
Sanitary sewers (miles)
Storm drains (miles)
Lift stations

Pumping Station (includes RSSSD)
Treatment capacity (millions of gallons)
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For the last six years.

(Unaudited)
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
1 1 1 1 1 1
1 1 1 1 1 1
9 10 i1 11
i1 11
2 2 2 2 2 2
2 2 2 2 3 3
7 7
1 1
5 5
2 2 2 2 2 2
3 3 3 3 3 3
1 1 1 1 1 1
1 1 1 1 1 1
99 102 105 106 131 145
1,165 1,452 1,460 1,517 1,537 1,550
118 125 125 133
1,342 1,392 1,412 1,417
6 6 7 7 8 9
12 13 14 15 15 21
116 128 134 134 134 445
1 i 1 1 1 1
6 7 7 8 9 11
10 10 12 12 12 12
4 4 4 5 6 5
12 12 14 14 14 14
157 153 172 175 180 184
1,063 1,295 1,359 1,472 1,489 1,569
19.2 19.2 19.2 19 19 19
8 8 8 8 8 8
160 153 166 167 168 170
32 36 101 103 104 105
2 2 2 2 2 2
3 3 3 3 3 3
4 4 4 4 6.4* 6.4*

*The City Wastewater Plant's hydraulic capacity permit is for 4.0 MGD. Parametrix, consultant for the Wastewater

Treatment Plant, conducted a capacity analysis after Phase 1 of the plant upgrade at DEQ's request and it was determined
the capacity was actually 6.4 MGD.

Sources:

(1) City Public Safety Department
(2) City Community Development Department

NOTE: The reporting of these statistics began after GASB 34 implementation, therefore only six years are reported.

(3) City Administrative Services Department

(4) City Public Works Department

(5) City Parks and Community Services Department
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CITY OF GRANTS PASS
JOSEPHINE COUNTY, OREGON

MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICS

June 30, 2008

(Unaudited)
Date of Incorporation -1887
Form of government - Council/Manager
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

Area (2) Acres- 5,562 Acres - 5,856 Acres - 6,166 Acres - 7,026 Acres - 7,026 Acres - 7,026
Number of police and officers 4 42 40 41 43 44 47
Number of firefighters and officers N 17 17 17 17 17 19
Employees

Classified service 3) 168 168 165 169 187.5 217

Exempt @3 9 9 9 9 9 10
Sources:

(1) City Public Safety Department
(2) City Community Development Department
(3) City Administrative Services Department

NOTE: The reporting of these statistics began after GASB 34 implementation, therefore only six years are reported.
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CITY OF GRANTS PASS

JOSEPHINE COUNTY, OREGON

STAFF ALLOCATION BY ACTIVITY*

Department/Activity

Administration
Management
Information Technology
Finance
Legal
Risk Insurance
Human Resources
Economic Development
Tourism Development
Downtown

Community Development
Management
Engineering
Planning
Building & Safety
Economic Development

Parking Enf./Downtown

Parks and Community Services

Information Services
Park Maintenance
Property Management
Aquatics

Street Maintenance
Recreation

Garage Operations
Equipment Repair
Tourism Development
Downtown

Public Works
Water Treatment
Water Distribution
Wastewater Collection
Wastewater Treatment
JO-GRO ™
Capital Projects
Solid Waste
Storm Water
Street Maintenance

Public Safety
Field Operations
Support Operations
Code Enforcement

Total

* Actual full-time positions

Fiscal Year
1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
345 3.55 4.75 4.75 4.90 590 5.90 5.90 5.90 6.90
- - - - 2.00 2.00 3.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
11.60 11.60 15.00 15.00 13.00 13.00 14.00 15.00 15.00 16.00
1.10 1.10 0.85 0.85 0.80 0.80 0.80 0.80 0.75 0.75
0.25 0.15 0.30 0.30 0.30 0.30 0.30 0.30 0.30 0.30
- - - - - - - - - 2.00
1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 0.00 1.00
1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 0.00 0.00
0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.00 0.00 0.00
18.90 18.90 23.40 23.40 24.50 25.50 27.50 25.00 21.95 26.95
4.00 4.00 5.00 6.00 6.00 6.00 7.00 7.00 7.00 8.00
5.50 6.50 8.00 8.00 8.00 8.00 8.00 9.20 9.00 10.00
8.00 8.00 9.00 9.00 11.00 14.00 7.00 9.00 8.00 11.00
- - - - - - 7.00 6.00 6.00 7.00
17.50 18.50 22.00 23.00 25.00 28.00 29.00 31.20 30.00 36.00
- - - - - - 0.00 3.55 2.65 445
6.30 6.30 6.35 6.30 6.30 6.30 6.40 6.40 6.45 8.00
1.30 1.30 1.25 1.20 1.20 1.20 1.00 1.05 0.90 1.25
0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.30 0.35 0.30 0.30
6.55 6.55 6.50 7.45 7.45 6.45 7.50 6.60 0.00 0.00
0.05 0.05 0.05 0.05 0.05 0.05 0.05 0.05 0.05 0.15
0.30 0.30 0.30 0.40 0.40 0.40 0.35 0.55 0.40 3.30
0.25 0.25 0.30 0.35 0.35 0.35 0.40 0.45 0.55 0.60
- - - - - - 0.00 0.00 2.00 1.85
- - - - - - 0.00 0.00 1.00 145
15.00 15.00 15.00 16.00 16.00 15.00 16.00 19.00 14.30 21.35
3.79 4.79 4.45 5.00 5.40 5.40 5.40 5.17 4.39 5.94
6.07 7.07 6.95 7.00 8.00 8.00 8.00 8.44 8.98 8.93
3.07 3.07 3.95 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.44 5.98 5.94
8.79 8.79 9.12 7.75 825 8.25 8.75 8.84 8.73 8.88
- - 3.33 3.25 3.35 3.35 3.85 3.91 3.91 4.05
1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
1.38 1.38 1.30 1.10 - - 0.00 0.00 0.01 0.00
- - - - - - 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.15
- - - - - - 0.00 0.00 6.70 6.76
24.10 26.10 30.10 29.10 30.00 30.00 31.00 31.80 39.70 41.65
50.50 50.50 51.50 52.50 54.50 52.50 54.50 59.00 60.00 68.00
16.00 16.00 26.00 26.00 27.00 26.00 26.00 28.00 26.00 31.00
- - - - - - - 1.00 3.05 2.05
66.50 66.50 77.50 78.50 81.50 78.50 80.50 88.00 89.05 101.05
142.00 145.00 168.00 170.00 177.00  177.00 184.00 195.00  195.00 227.00

-117 -



'sojoN 10 o8ed IxoN 20§

%00°001 0L68LYE  § %00°001 TIOLLES § %00°001 6S1°SPT°C SANUDASY JOTBAN BI04
%168 $69°1TIE %20°88 L89°9L6'T %97°L8 SI8°1€8°C $30.N0S JBURO IV
%6$°01 SLT'LSE 601°THT %86°11 $T6°00Y 7£9°00€ %bL'Tl vhEcIy $91°L0€ [210)-qng
%TH 0 8  YEL€Cl SPITI %830 01 8¢TTl 96t°6 ([erorounuiod) MeN-[ep
%890 L £66°1C 600°S1 %SH°0 6 €65%1 6€1°€T %90 01 61807 661 (jerosourwon) age([1A Sundg/suod Sudg
%¥9°0 9 08807 6L0°€T %bL 0 8  976°¢T vey'Le %890 6 S8I1°TC 819°LT (Jerorouno) SPOOMPIEH SSed SIUBID
%000 %6L°0 L T8S'ST 1e¥¢l %LL'O 8  8W6VT 0p$s1 (Teroeuruos) sejue)) Surddoys ssed sjuein
%3L°0 §  8LEST £19°8C %000 %8L°0 LTSt €€1°LT (Jerouauri00) $JONPOI] JOqUIL],
%3810 6 8691 90511 %260 9 SLL6T $86°0C %L80 9  TsE8e 81002 (oqnd) woBauQ Jo 25Elg
2000 %960 S 3 (Al vhv0T %£6°0 S TsooE 698°61 (Apnwreg-nnu) “sidy poomIsary
%071 € €80%6¢ 1v6°0¢€ %8C'1 v 9IS 1H 0£0°6¢ %p1'] ¥ 960°LE €E¥LT ([eIowon) [e)dSOH SIeAry a1y L
%9%°1 v T9¢LY ¥S1°0€ %CL'1 € 99L¢S 978°1¢ %¢8'1 € pEV6S 8L1¥¢C (onqnd) Kuno) surydasof
%L1 T T0T9S S9L ‘g %80°C T LSKLY TEIIS %S1'T T L6L'6Y $S6°PS (onqnd) £ 3010810 10040S
%09°¢ T SP6°9IT  $ 86°€CS %S$0°€ 1 6¥886  $ 1TTLL %£6'C [ 6£T°56 1L¥°LY (o1qnd) sseq sjueaD jo AND
ONUBATY [BIO], qUBY  4xPNUIATY  (JOY OO]) SHU{)] ONUAIY [BIO], quBY #xONUSAY  (JoY 00 1) Suup) ANURASY  uey ANUAY oy 001) suun (uoneaIISSB[O) JOW0ISN))
JO JuadXeg fenuuy uondwmsuo) Jousor0g jenuuy uondwnsuo)) 8101, fenuuy uondwnsuo)y
Jenuuy [enuuy Jo juadiag [enuuy
$00T 00T €002
(panpneu())

1894 [OST] XIS ISE] AU} 10,

SHDYUNOS HNNTATY LSTDUYVINIAL
ALITILO YHLVA

NOOTYO ‘ALNAOD ANIHIISOL
SSVd SINVYD AC ALID

- 118 -



"paniodai axe sieak xis A[uo a10Jarayy ‘vonElueweldw] ¢ gSVD Ioye uedaq sonsnes asay) jo unuodai syl :JLON

*SIDQUINU SNUSASI JOMO] PASNED oIy o1kl J1amo] & padreyo pue uone3Lun ajqndniisiut uo Ind a1om SJUSID SWOS 90, A 4 UJ s
*90IAISS JO 9ZIS PUE SSB[O 0] aNp AIBA UBD SNUSADJ “IR[IWIS 9q A UoNdWNSUOD S[IYM 4

"S00T UL S19°68$ PUE 00T Ul 0¥T°$9$ €00T Ul £0Z°9SS JO [210) S3TIRYD OIAIDS JO DAISN[OXT 4

199 21QNO palpuny = Joy

2%00°001 0SS 19V Y § 2%00°001 LT8TSOS § 200°001 0OvVILY  § SONUSAY JOTBAN 810 L4
%I1T 6L 6SL°6L9°C %Eh 8L £86°CSEY %SL'S8 S01°759°¢ $30J108 JOUI0 [V
%6L°0T 119°18L L¥6°01€ %LS 1T 718669 LS9 116 %ST Y1 S6T°ToF €85°70S [e103-qng
%000 %6€°0 11 8bLTl 6411 (ferorownuod) 21053y A 7 Sutpue] e[
%000 %390 6 S81CC 819°LT ([e1012UILOD) SPOOMPIEEH SSE( SIUBID
%000 %9$°¢ 8 6611 HTShl 2090 8 LyEel 9161 (o119nd) uoSa1Q o LIS
%LLD 0l  066%C 6t6°S %890 6 80T Zoa) %2E0 01 1501 CPL'S (Jerodewwion) Jsyus)) Surddoyg sseq siueiny
%E1'] 6 LEL9E 1235 4! %9¢’1 9  SHOP $79°99 %IL0 9 6T €L9°EE (fero1ouruo0) §)oNpol Jquit],
%61 8 ¥80°SH 9L8°8 s1aping AepljoH
%Sl L 1166V $00°11 %36°1 S SOTIS L60°0€E %P0 6 U6ECL LT9°81 (Jerosowion) HEN-[EM
%86'1 9  I1STH9 1€0°1 %¥0'C ¥ 99199 Ty %6L°0 S 0LS'ST €€TIE (Amureg-ninw) "s)dy pOOMIBATY
%¥9°C S 019%8 128°6T 2%08°C € 12806 LY YL %L1 T 6L8°SS LOSLY (onqnd) fyuno) surydasof
%L1 ¥ 016701 £9L°6S %95°¢ T 66VSTI ehTisyl %L0°1 ¥ TSLYE 6LEOY (o1gnd) £ 101s1(T [00UYOS

€ 016901 78L°€E %81'1 € Trese Se8cy (jerosewitod) [elldsOH SISATY 994,
%9b°€ T 9TrTIl SLT1E %11 L 8TL9E £L59¢ %99°0 L LEETIT $S9°TT (Terosewrod) a3e(piA Sundg/euiod Suiidg
%ILY 1 78LTST  $ T6l0Ll %8L'E 1 ovLcel  $99L°€Te %LL9 1 108°61C  § SE€9VET (o1gnd) sseq syuein) yo A1
ANUSADY [BIO] Sjuey ANUSATY (Joy 001) Snun  dNUSASY [EIOL Nuey  SNUAANY  (Joy 0O1) SHUN ONUBATY  NUBY  4x4PNUSADY  (JOY 00) SHUN (uoTIEOIJISSE]D) JOWIOISTL,)

JO Ju3dIg Jenuuy uopdwmsuo)y JO U013 renuuy uondwnsuo)) 210}, [enuuy uondwnsuc))
_m5:c< ) _m:EM{ mo Euohvm ESE.J&
800¢ L00T 9002
(pauipneun)

SIeaA [0Sy XIS 1se] 3y} Jo

(ANNLINOD) SEOUNOS ANNTATY LSTDIAVT NAL
ALTTILO JHLVA

NOOHIO ‘ALNNOD ANIHJAISOr

SSVd SINVUD 40 ALLD

- 119 -



CITY OF GRANTS PASS

JOSEPHINE COUNTY, OREGON

UTILITY STATISTICS

Fiscal Year

WATER USAGE CUSTOMER ANALYSIS
For the last ten fiscal years

(Unaudited)

Number of Accounts

Ended June Fire Outside City
30, Residential Multi-Family Commercial Public Protection Surcharge Total
1999 5,601 704 970 129 79 39 7,523
2000 5,814 721 967 145 77 40 7,765
2001 6,094 722 980 120 76 85 8,078
2002 6,333 743 995 170 95 176 8,513
2003 6,553 766 1,027 173 97 252 8,869
2004 6,780 808 1,046 168 100 255 9,157
2005 6,909 874 1,095 189 116 270 9,453
2006 7,400 940 1,138 172 123 233 10,006
2007 7,708 948 1,134 181 135 207 10,313
2008 7,869 945 1,159 152 132 97 10,354
Water Consumption (hcf)
Fiscal Year
Ended June Fire QOutside City
30, Residential Multi-Family Commercial Public Protection Surcharge Total

1999 924,500 313,554 524,725 166,585 369 8,522 1,938,225
2000 939,679 314,895 529,133 162,411 1,682 8,004 1,955,804
2001 972,185 314,311 517,178 164,882 705 14,141 1,983,402
2002 966,914 304,344 504,619 179,148 367 34,393 1,989,785
2003 1,026,069 308,281 516,551 200,821 278 46,200 2,098,200
2004 1,103,582 322,686 521,548 202,270 431 51,244 2,201,761
2005 1,268,695 354,590 576,633 225,770 1,858 51,326 2,478,872
2006 1,777,033 429,727 800,893 264,922 2,405 50,162 3,325,142
2007 1,761,357 440,405 783,055 278,658 1,639 35,471 3,300,585
2008 1,637,651 350,760 581,247 223,662 470 35,153 2,828,943
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CITY OF GRANTS PASS
JOSEPHINE COUNTY, OREGON

Water and Sewer Rates

Water and Sewer Rates from 1993 through November 1, 2005

Waterm Sewer
Monthly Base Commodity Monthly
Rate first 500 Charge Per 100 Service Volume
cof? cf above 500 cf Charge Charge

Residential $12.30 0.87 $4.31 $1.50 X awwc®
Multifamily $12.30 0.55 $4.31 $1.50 X awwc®
Commercial $12.30 0.57 $4.31 $1.50 X awc™®
Public $12.30 0.71 $4.31 $1.50 X awc®

(1) Additional monthly charges may apply depending on geographical elevation in which service is provided

(service level charge) and whether the fire protection charge applies.
(2) Rate is based on the 3/4 inch meter which is the most common meter used.

Water Rates as of February, 2006 Sewer Rates as of October, 2005
Add'l Unit
Monthly Chrg for multi-
Meter Size Base Rate | family & PUD Class Per Month
3/4"orless |$ 830 $ 3.10 Residential
1" 18.50 3.10 Monthly Service Charge $ 10.60
1.5" 34.90 3.10 Volume Charge x awwc 2.18
2" 56.00 3.10
3" 108.00 3.10 Multi-Family
4" 179.00 3.10 Monthly Service Charge $ 10.60
6" 340.00 3.10 Volume Charge x awwc 2.18
8" 541.00 3.10
10" 838.00 3.10 Commercial Normal Strength
Monthly Service Charge $ 10.60
Single Family Residential Volume Charge x awc 2.18
0-10 11-25 unit >26 units
$0.77 $0.98 $1.16 Commercial High Strength
Monthly Service Charge $ 10.60
Customer Class Volume Charge x awc 2.18
Multi-Family & PUD $ 0.76
Commercial/Public 0.91 Public
Irrigation-All Classes 1.32 Monthly Service Charge $ 10.60
Standby-All Classes 1.32 Volume Charge x awc 2.18
Service Level Charge
Service Level Per Unit Chrg
1 0
2 $0.09
3 $0.19
4 $0.28 (3) awwc: average winter water consumption
5 $0.37 (4) awe: actual water consumption
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CITY OF GRANTS PASS
JOSEPHINE COUNTY, OREGON

Water and Sewer Rates

Annually the water and sewer rates will be increased by the 12-month average of
Cost of Living Index which is 3.43% for 2007.

Water Rates as of January 1, 2007

Add'l Unit
Monthly Chrg for multi-
Meter Size Base Rate | family & PUD
3/4"orless |$  8.58 $ 3.21
1" 19.13 321
1.5" 36.10 3.21
2" 57.92 321
3" 111.70 3.21
4" 185.14 3.21
6" 351.66 321
8" 559.56 3.21
10" 866.74 321
_Single Family Residential
0-10 11-25 unit >26 units
$0.77 $0.98 $1.20
Customer Class
Multi-Family & PUD $ 079
Commercial/Public 0.94
Irrigation-All Classes 1.37
Standby-All Classes 1.37
Service Level Charge
Service Level Per Unit Chrg
1 0
2 $0.09
3 $0.20
4 $0.29
5 $0.38
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Sewer Rates as of January 1, 2007

Per

Class Month
Residential
Monthly Service Charge $ 1096
Volume Charge x awwc 2.25
Multi-Family
Monthly Service Charge $ 1096
Volume Charge x awwc 2.25
Commercial Normal Strength
Monthly Service Charge $ 1096
Volume Charge x awc 2.25
Commercial High Strength
Monthly Service Charge $ 1096
Volume Charge x awc 3.15
Public
Monthly Service Charge § 1096
Volume Charge x awc 2.25

(3) awwec: average winter water consumption

(4) awc: actual water consumption




CITY OF GRANTS PASS
JOSEPHINE COUNTY, OREGON

Water and Sewer Rates

Annually the water and sewer rates will be increased by the 12-month average of
Cost of Living Index which is 2.54% for 2008.

Water Rates as of January 1, 2008

Add'l Unit
Monthly Chrg for multi-
Meter Size Base Rate family & PUD
3/4"orless |$  8.80 $ 3.29
1" 19.62 3.29
1.5" 37.02 3.29
2" 59.39 3.29
3" 114.54 3.29
4" 189.84 3.29
6" 360.59 3.29
8" 573.77 3.29
10" 888.76 3.29
Single Family Residential
0-10 11-25 unit >26 units
$0.82 $1.04 $1.23
Customer Class
Multi-Family & PUD $ 0381
Commercial/Public 0.96
Irrigation-All Classes 1.40
Standby-All Classes 1.40
Service Level Charge
Service Level Per Unit Chrg
1 0
2 $0.09
3 $0.21
4 $0.30
5 $0.39
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Sewer Rates as of January 1, 2008

Per

Class Month
Residential
Monthly Service Charge $ 1124
Volume Charge x awwc 2.31
Multi-Family
Monthly Service Charge $ 1124
Volume Charge x awwc 231
Commercial Normal Strength
Monthly Service Charge $ 1124
Volume Charge x awc 231
Commercial High Strength
Monthly Service Charge $ 1124
Volume Charge x awc 3.23
Public
Monthly Service Charge $ 1124
Volume Charge x awc 2.31

(3) awwec: average winter water consumption

(4) awc: actual water consumption
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December 18, 2008

2007-2008 AUDITORS' COMMENTS AND DISCLOSURES

Oregon Administrative Rules 162-10-000 through 162-16-000, the Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon
Municipal Corporations, enumerate the financial statements, schedules, comments and disclosures required in
audit reports. The required statements and schedules are set forth in preceding pages of this report. Required
comments and disclosures related to our audit of such statements and schedules are set forth as follows:

REPORT ON INTERNAL ACCOUNTING CONTROL

We have audited the Basic financial statements of the City of Grants Pass, Oregon, as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2008, and have issued our report thereon dated December 18, 2008.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the Basic financial statements are free of material misstatement.

The management of the City of Grants Pass, Oregon, is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal
control structure. In fulfilling this responsibility, estimates and judgments by management are required to assess
the expected benefits and related costs of internal control structure policies and procedures. The objectives of an
internal control structure are to provide management with reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that assets are
safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use or disposition and that transactions are executed in accordance
with management's authorization and recorded properly to permit the preparation of Basic financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Because of inherent limitations in any internal control
structure, errors or irregularities may nevertheless occur and not be detected. Also, projection of any evaluation
of the structure to future periods is subject to the risk that procedures may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions or that the effectiveness of the design and operation of policies and procedures may deteriorate.

In planning and performing our audit of the basic financial statements of City of Grants Pass, Oregon, for the
year ended June 30, 2008, we obtained an understanding of the internal control structure. With respect to the
internal control structure, we obtained an understanding of the design of relevant policies and procedures and
whether they have been placed in operation, and we assessed control risk in order to determine our auditing
procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the basic financial statements and not to provide an
opinion on the internal control structure. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency in which the design or operation of one or more of the specific
internal control structure elements does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that errors and irregularities
in amounts that would be material in relation to the basic financial statements being audited may occur and not be
detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We
noted no matters involving the internal control structure and its operations that we consider to be material
weaknesses as defined above.
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2007-2008 AUDITORS' COMMENTS AND DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

REPORT ON INTERNAL ACCOUNTING CONTROL (CONTINUED)

Our consideration of the internal control structure would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control
structure that might be significant deficiencies and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all significant
deficiencies that are also considered to be material weaknesses as defined above. We have issued a report on
significant deficiencies dated December 18, 2008.

These factors were considered in determining the nature, timing and extent of the audit tests to be applied in our
audit of the basic financial statements, and this report does not affect our report on the basic financial statements
dated December 18, 2008.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the council, management, federal awarding agencies and
pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

ACCOUNTING RECORDS

The City's accounting records were adequate for audit.

2007-06 AND 2008-07 BUDGETS

The budgets adopted by the City for the current and ensuing fiscal year were examined during the audit. Based
on our testing, it was determined that budget preparation and adoption procedures followed by the City were in
compliance with the Oregon Local Budget Law.

Expenses of the various funds were within authorized appropriations for the year ended June 30, 2008.

STATE HIGHWAY FUNDS

The City’s compliance with requirements of Article IX, Section 3a of the Oregon Constitution and ORS 294 and
373 was reviewed, and based upon our testing, were found to comply with the restrictions on the use of revenue
from taxes on motor vehicle use and fuel.

COLLATERAL SECURING BANK DEPOSITS

We are not aware of any failure to comply with legal requirements related to the amount and adequacy of
collateral pledged by depositories to secure funds of the City.

INVESTMENTS

The City's investments for the year ending June 30, 2008, were reviewed and based upon our testing, appeared to
comply with the legal requirements pertaining to the investment of public funds contained in ORS 294.035.

PUBLIC CONTRACTS AND PURCHASING

The City's procedures for awarding public contracts were reviewed, and based upon our testing, we found no
instances of non-compliance with ORS Chapter 279 during 2007-2008.
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2007-2008 AUDITORS' COMMENTS AND DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

INSURANCE AND FIDELITY BONDS

We are not aware of any failure to comply with legal requirements relating to insurance and fidelity bonds,
however, we are not competent by training and experience to comment on the adequacy of insurance coverage.
We recommend the City consult appropriate advisers related to these issues.

STATUTORY BONDED DEBT LIMITATION

The City's bonded debt outstanding appeared to be within the limitation established by Oregon Law.

PROGRAMS FUNDED FROM OUTSIDE SOURCES

We reviewed and tested, to the extent we considered necessary in the circumstances, transactions and reports
relative to federal and state programs. Since the City did not expend greater than $500,000 in federal financial
assistance for the year ended June 30, 2008, it was not necessary to perform, nor did we perform, tests in
accordance with the Federal Single Audit Act, as amended (U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-
133)
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PAULY, ROGERS AND CO,, P.C.
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